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As one of the leading bankcard issuers in the United States, Providian Financial makes a difference in the lives of countless individuals every day

By highlighting the places where Providian employees live and work, this report celebrates the diversity and character of our communities, and the

relationships between our employees and the customers they serve. The cities in red are featured on the following pages. The cities in blue are

shown on a poster, which is wrapped around the cover of this Annual Report.

El Paso, TX

Belmont, NH
Tilton, NH

Concord, NH

Austin, TX

Arlington, TX

Louisville, KY

Henderson, NV

San Francisco, CA

Pleasanton, CA

Oakland, CA

Fairfield, CA

San Antonio, TX

London, England

Crawley, England

Sacramento, CA

Salt Lake City, UT

Buenos Aires, Argentina
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“My comfort level has increased
100% as a direct result of your   
outstanding people.” 
Cheryl F. Young, Goffstown, New Hampshire

Case Study  00.01-A

Customer Since:
2000

1999
1998

1997
1996

1995
1994

1993
1992

1991
1990

1989
1988

1987
1986

1985

re: Brian Cauler, Providian Employee, Concord, New Hampshire
Services Used:

VISA
MasterCard

Classic Card
Gold Card

Gold Premier Card
Platinum Card

Smart Card
Aria Card
WebCard
GetSmart.com
Money Market Deposit Account
Certificate of Deposit
Personal Shopper
Planned Savings Account
PaySmart
Credit Protection
Destination Unlimited
Providian Health Advantage
Providian BuySmart
MyCreditProfile



Brian Cauler /      Personal Banker, Deposit Sales and Service  

People who are thinking about depositing money with us call from all over the country. It’s coincidental that Cheryl

Young just happened to live here in New Hampshire. Customers are drawn to the convenience of banking with us

by phone and the Internet, as well as to our competitive rates. No matter where they live, most callers want to know

about Providian before they open a certificate of deposit or a money market account or a Planned Savings Account.

I tell them, look us up. Providian National Bank has been around since 1853 and our parent company is traded on

the New York Stock Exchange—I give them our ticker symbol. Then I tell them we’re a great company and we have

great rates, but what you really need to know is we’re a company that believes in our customers and our employees.

Anybody you reach in this office is going to give you the best customer service you’ve ever had, even at our busiest

peak times. Sometimes it amazes me when I realize the impact that good customer service has on the dollar amounts

that customers bank with us. I even tell people that our service is so good, they’ll never want to bank anywhere else.”

Case Study  00.01-B

“
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“Saving every penny, and with my 
line of credit to enhance my overall
credit profile, I was able to get 
the mortgage.”
Rebecca Turcio, New Haven, Connecticut

Case Study  00.02-A

Customer Since:
2000

1999
1998

1997
1996

1995
1994

1993
1992

1991
1990

1989
1988

1987
1986

1985

re: Paul Lott, Providian Employee, Henderson, Nevada 
Services Used:

VISA
MasterCard

Classic Card
Gold Card

Gold Premier Card
Platinum Card

Smart Card
Aria Card
WebCard
GetSmart.com
Money Market Deposit Account
Certificate of Deposit
Personal Shopper
Planned Savings Account
PaySmart
Credit Protection
Destination Unlimited
Providian Health Advantage
Providian BuySmart
MyCreditProfile



Paul Lott /      Unit Manager, Aria Customer Service 

Our online credit card customers are like most Providian customers, except they’ve opened their accounts on the

Internet. They can check their accounts every day, or every minute, so maybe that makes them a bit more attuned

to issues associated with their credit. Rebecca Turcio sent us an enthusiastic e-mail, thanking us for helping her.

Recently, she had to move unexpectedly and she decided to buy a house. That’s what prompted her e-mail. She was

so happy when she got approved for a mortgage. Because her money was tied up in her down payment, Ms. Turcio

was overjoyed that she could use her Providian Card to buy Christmas presents for her children. These relationships

are important to us. It gives me added pleasure knowing that we are helping our customers in so many different ways

to enhance their lives.”

Case Study  00.02-B

“
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“You gave me the ability 
to realize my lifelong dream 
of becoming a nurse.”
Linda Moyer, Danielsville, Pennsylvania

Case Study  00.03-A

Customer Since:
2000

1999
1998

1997
1996

1995
1994

1993
1992

1991
1990

1989
1988

1987
1986

1985

re: Kevin Horrocks, Providian Employee, Salt Lake City, Utah
Services Used:

VISA
MasterCard

Classic Card
Gold Card

Gold Premier Card
Platinum Card

Smart Card
Aria Card
WebCard
GetSmart.com
Money Market Deposit Account
Certificate of Deposit
Personal Shopper
Planned Savings Account
PaySmart
Credit Protection
Destination Unlimited
Providian Health Advantage
Providian BuySmart
MyCreditProfile



Kevin Horrocks /      Unit Manager, Customer Service Management

Linda Moyer’s story is just one example of how people’s relationships with Providian can result in their dreams coming

true. In a letter Ms. Moyer sent us, she talked about her dream of becoming a nurse. After years of thinking about

it, it took encouragement from her college-bound daughter and a Providian VISA Card to finally make it happen. Our

card helped her to get through two years of preparatory work and then earn the actual nursing degree itself. She

graduated in May 2000 and wrote us that her Providian VISA Gold has changed her life. We work hard to find ways

to build the relationship with our customers so they have financial choices. When you get right to the heart of it,

we’re really looking for ways to help people achieve financial success so they can build better lives. So when 

people call and they’re reaching out for a dream, like Linda Moyer, we’re motivated to find solutions that work for

both of us. It underscores the commitment that Providian has made to its customers. We have the tools and access

to information that help us create solutions that are right for our customers. And when it’s right for our customers,

it’s good business.”  

Case Study  00.03-B

“
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One in eight households in America 
now has a relationship with Providian.
That’s an amazing statistic 
when you consider that just four short years ago, in 1997, 
the year when we became an independent company,
Providian’s customer base stood at 4.5 million. 
We were already emerging as one of the larger players 
in the credit card business, 
and we caused a lot of heads to turn in our direction. 
We finished 2000 with 16.3 million customers 
and the knowledge that the course we set in 1997—
to build the industry’s strongest consumer franchise — 
was the correct one.
Our performance in 2000 illustrated the success 
of our business model. 
We delivered another year of record earnings. 
The most noteworthy statistics, 
excluding one-time adjustments, include: 
Earnings per diluted share: 
up 44% to $2.73, from $1.89 in 1999. 
Total managed revenue: 
up 36% to $5.7 billion, from $4.2 billion in 1999. 
Net income: 
up 45% to $799 million, from $550 million in 1999. 
Return on managed assets: 
2.9%—substantially higher than our competitors.

Letter to Shareholders
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Providian has been able to achieve record results, year after year, because we operate with an adaptive business model. Our strength is in 

our capabilities—unique combinations of know-how, talent, data, and systems that enable us to adapt to a continuously changing environment.

At Providian, lending is a service that evolves over the course of a long-term relationship. We’ve built the capabilities to respond to our

customers’ changing needs. In 2000, this customer-centric operating approach resulted in improved retention, high levels of customer 

satisfaction, and continued record growth. And we’ve accomplished all this while maintaining strong economic and risk disciplines and

investing for future success.

While the elegance of our approach is in its simplicity, we could not have achieved these results without the industry’s strongest 

management and frontline employee teams who know that they are the company’s customer service ambassadors. Every single person at

Providian—from the customer service representative in San Antonio to the collections supervisor in Salt Lake City, to the risk management

team in London, England—understands that their primary mission is to provide a positive customer experience. We get it. Pieces of plastic

are not our main assets. Our customers are.

The first year of the new millennium gave Providian some additional reasons to celebrate. We opened new customer service centers in

Henderson, Nevada, and San Antonio and Austin, Texas. We leased space and began building a center in El Paso, Texas. And we expanded

into our second international location, starting up operations in Argentina.

In a year when many Internet companies struggled, Providian’s e-commerce operations had great success. Providian-owned

GetSmart.com, one of the Web’s leading financial marketplaces, had a record year, with millions of visitors logging on and using the 

services. Our online credit card attracted hundreds of thousands of new customers. Our subsidiary, First Select, emerged—after just two

years in operation—as one of the industry’s leading debt services companies. And our national deposit business reached $1 billion in online

deposits during 2000. 

Providian also takes great pride in our community involvement. The past year was another “Year of the Child,” as we continued to

demonstrate our commitment to child care organizations and causes in our communities. We donated or provided matching gifts totaling

nearly $2.5 million to improve the availability of quality child care—a cause we believe is one of America’s most deserving. 

We were also pleased to have created, in cooperation with the Children’s Council of San Francisco, the Shining Star Awards, which

acknowledge local child care heroes. A similar awards program is conducted in New Hampshire, where Providian National Bank is chartered.

The company also devoted both attention and funding to financial literacy projects, such as a multi-year, $11 million partnership with the

NeighborWorks organization to make affordable mortgage finance and cutting-edge financial literacy training available for low-income resi-

dents. We also worked to help improve the communities in which we operate by supporting a variety of Community Redevelopment projects. 

As you can see, we achieved a great deal in 2000, and I am as optimistic as ever about 2001. Thanks to the hard work of our employees,

we have built a strong company poised to further extend our record of success. To that end, we have set a corporate goal of 25% 

earnings per share growth over the long term along with a doubling of our customer base in three years’ time. I’m confident that if we 

continue to dedicate ourselves to building the best customer-focused franchise in the financial services industry, we can achieve our goals. 

Shailesh J. Mehta, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer / March 30, 2001
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We’re always looking for ways to say yes that have a 
direct impact on making customers’ lives better. At any 
given moment, we can make quick decisions because we 
have invested in technologies and platforms to provide 
solutions that work. People don’t forget that.”
Nancy Satoda, Senior Vice President , Risk Management, San Francisco, California

When customers call, I’ve got the responsibility and the 
authority to deal with their needs. They’re my customers. 
If there’s any way possible, I want to reach a satisfactory 
conclusion on that first call. People have better things to do 
than to keep calling their credit card company. This is about 
a relationship. Any agreement they have with Providian is 
really an agreement between them and me. I’m taking the 
responsibility to find a solution, and the customer is making 
a commitment to uphold their part of the relationship.”
Art Vallez, Director, Training and Communications, Oakland, California

We’ve gone to great lengths to help customers make 
responsible decisions. We were the first bankcard company 
to put our rates in 18-point type. It’s bold and it really 
jumps out at you. And we write our product offers in plain 
English so that the customers can understand what 
they’re paying for. Customer satisfaction is something every 
person at Providian is committed to. We try to build it into 
every offer, and our customer service representatives 
reinforce it every time they talk with a customer. It’s all part 
of our commitment to build a solid customer franchise.”
Dawn Greiner, Executive Vice President, Integrated Card Business, San Francisco, California

“

“

“
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Platinum Market

Middle Market

Standard Market

SM Smart Card

PL Platinum

GO Gold

CL Classic

SC Secured Card

01 Identify Need

02 Customize Product

03 Establish Primary Lender Relationship

04 Manage Relationship for Growth and Retention

Our customers are actively managing their finances, they’re paying attention, and they’re in constant communication with us. By listening to their needs

we’ve been able to develop products that help them get where they want to go, faster and better. Our online credit card is a good example of that and

GetSmart.com, our financial services marketplace, is another. Regardless of what type of Providian product they hold, every customer gets world-class 

service—this is the one thing that is the same for everyone. Sure, we serve a broad market, but to us, each customer is a market of one.” Greg Pacheco

Senior Vice President, E-Commerce, San Francisco, California

We have a range of products that work for people across the credit spectrum. We’ve built the tools and developed the skills to offer the right product 

features and terms for each customer at the right time. It’s a way of meeting customers’ needs that makes good business sense. The proof is in our ability to

build relationships that remain valuable to customers as their financial needs evolve.” Darren Jones, Site Manager, San Antonio, Texas

“

“

“

Technology is supposed to be this impersonal thing that takes the human touch out of business. I’d say it’s the other way around. We use it to do the hard

work. Doing more research gives us more ways to meet our customers’ needs. We harness data to make real-time decisions that make sense for each 

customer’s personal situation. So in Providian’s case, technology actually helps us be more personal. That level of care makes for better solutions and 

happier customers. And that’s just good business.” John Rountree, Manager, Integrated Card Business Risk Management, San Francisco, California

01 Customer-Focused Model

02 Lending as a Service

03 Balanced Risks and Rewards
01

02 03

Finding a Way to Say Yes

Lasting Relationships

Better Solutions

SC

CL

SM

PL
GO

01 02 03 04

,

,
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(dollars in millions, except per common share data) 2 0 0 0( 1 ) 1 9 9 9 % Increase

Total Revenue (managed) $ 5,719 $ 4 , 1 9 5 3 6 %

Net Income 799 5 5 0 4 5 %

Total Shareholders’ Equity 2,032 1 , 3 3 2 5 3 %

Total Assets (managed) 30,863 2 3 , 6 8 9 3 0 %

Per Common Share:

Net Income— B a s i c $ 2.81 $ 1 . 9 5 4 4 %

Net Income— Assuming Dilution 2.73 1 . 8 9 4 4 %

Total Shareholders’ E q u i t y 7.11 4 . 6 9 5 2 %

R a t i o s :

Return on Average Assets 4 . 5 9 % 5 . 3 7 % –

Return on Average Assets (managed) 2 . 8 9 % 3 . 0 2 % –

Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity 4 8 . 0 4 % 5 2 . 3 7 % –

Shareholders’ Equity to Total Assets 1 1 . 2 6 % 9 . 2 9 % –

S h a r e h o l d e r s’ Equity to Total Assets (managed)  6 . 5 8 % 5 . 6 2 % –

(1) Total revenue (managed), net income, net income per common share—basic, net income per common share—assuming dilution, and return ratios exclude one-time net pre-tax 
charges of $309.3 million and a gain of $64.7 million. These highlights should be read together with the financial statements beginning on page 68.

Financial Highlights
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3
4
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1. Shailesh J. Mehta / Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer  2. Ellen Richey / Vice Chairman, General Counsel and Secretary  3. David J. Petrini

/ Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  4. David R. Alvarez / President, Integrated Card Business 5. James H. Rowe / President, Global 

E-Commerce  6. James G. Jones / President, International Business  7. Kirk Inglis / President, First Select  8. Lauri Kober / Chief Executive Officer,

GetSmart.com, Inc.  9. John H. Rogers / Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer  10. James P. Redmond  / Executive Vice President

and Chief Risk Management Officer
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“ I have a Gold Card with
Providian and have achieved
greater financial freedom.” 
Sandy Hayes, Commerce Township, Michigan

Case Study  00.04-A

Customer Since:
2000

1999
1998

1997
1996

1995
1994

1993
1992

1991
1990

1989
1988

1987
1986

1985

re: Lizbeth Alarcon, Providian Employee, Pleasanton, California
Services Used:

VISA
MasterCard

Classic Card
Gold Card

Gold Premier Card
Platinum Card

Smart Card
Aria Card
WebCard
GetSmart.com
Money Market Deposit Account
Certificate of Deposit
Personal Shopper
Planned Savings Account
PaySmart
Credit Protection
Destination Unlimited
Providian Health Advantage
Providian BuySmart
MyCreditProfile



Lizbeth Alarcon /      Unit Manager, Customer Management  

Sandy Hayes’ situation is not unusual in today’s world. Here’s a customer whose life circumstances changed—in her

case it was a divorce. As a traveling salesperson, she relied on a credit card to book hotels and rent cars and 

wouldn’t have been able to do her job without one. When she became a Providian customer, Ms. Hayes gained

access to the payment system and was able to pursue her career without interruption. We want customers like Ms.

Hayes for the long term. What’s more important is how her relationship with Providian resulted in the enhancement

of her career, and how we were able to provide a Gold Card to meet her changing needs. It’s not such an unusual

thing here—we go out of our way to make it work. Because we are empowered to make decisions to help our 

customers, we all feel that this is my customer, and my company. I can make a difference. That’s what makes me

want to come to work every day.”

Case Study  00.04-B

“
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“Providian Bank has been there
for us no matter what the 
circumstance. Thanks, Providian
VISA Platinum Card!”
Virginia Gaeta, Media, Pennsylvania

Case Study  00.05-A

Customer Since:
2000

1999
1998

1997
1996

1995
1994

1993
1992

1991
1990

1989
1988

1987
1986

1985

re: Gwendolyn Orr, Providian Employee, San Antonio, Texas
Services Used:

VISA
MasterCard

Classic Card
Gold Card

Gold Premier Card
Platinum Card

Smart Card
Aria Card
WebCard
GetSmart.com
Money Market Deposit Account
Certificate of Deposit
Personal Shopper
Planned Savings Account
PaySmart
Credit Protection
Destination Unlimited
Providian Health Advantage
Providian BuySmart
MyCreditProfile



Gwendolyn Orr /      Senior Unit Manager, Customer Service 

When we have a good relationship with a customer we stick with them even in difficult times. Virginia Gaeta was a

Platinum customer with an excellent credit history. She was recovering from surgery following an auto accident when

her husband also required emergency surgery. He was the only source of income for the family. Providian was able

to help and the family got back on track. We’re empowered to help our customers. A lot of our customers feel like

they’re the most important people to us. And you know what? They are. Customers are surprised when we take the

time to tell them how to use their card to get the most benefit from it. They really appreciate it. Sometimes customers

leave for what they think are better offers, but they often come back. They usually tell me it’s because of the way

they’re treated at Providian. We’re not into job titles; we’re like a family, that’s how we act. We want our customers

to do well and we want to make them feel like they’re a part of the Providian family.”  

Case Study  00.05-B

“
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Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6

Income Statement Data

Interest income $ 2 , 6 9 9 , 9 4 7 $ 1 , 6 2 4 , 2 7 6 $ 8 4 2 , 5 7 9 $ 5 8 2 , 4 9 3 $ 5 8 4 , 1 8 2

Interest expense 8 7 5 , 1 7 4 4 4 9 , 0 7 0 2 4 7 , 2 6 6 1 8 3 , 1 1 0 1 8 9 , 5 6 9

Net interest income 1 , 8 2 4 , 7 7 3 1 , 1 7 5 , 2 0 6 5 9 5 , 3 1 3 3 9 9 , 3 8 3 3 9 4 , 6 1 3

Provision for credit losses 1 , 5 1 5 , 3 5 0 1 , 0 9 9 , 1 3 1 5 4 5 , 9 2 9 1 4 9 , 2 6 8 1 2 6 , 5 7 9

Non-interest income 3 , 2 4 8 , 3 0 2 2 , 4 1 2 , 4 7 6 1 , 2 6 6 , 1 7 9 6 3 4 , 6 3 2 4 2 3 , 8 1 9

Non-interest expense 2 , 4 7 1 , 5 0 3 1 , 5 7 1 , 1 2 6 8 2 5 , 0 0 0 5 7 3 , 4 4 7 4 3 4 , 6 0 2

Income before income taxes 1 , 0 8 6 , 2 2 2 9 1 7 , 4 2 5 4 9 0 , 5 6 3 3 1 1 , 3 0 0 2 5 7 , 2 5 1

Income tax expense 4 3 4 , 4 6 0 3 6 7 , 1 5 3 1 9 4 , 1 1 7 1 1 9 , 8 3 9 9 7 , 4 8 5

Net Income $ 6 5 1 , 7 6 2 $ 5 5 0 , 2 7 2 $ 2 9 6 , 4 4 6 $ 1 9 1 , 4 6 1 $ 1 5 9 , 7 6 6

Cash dividends declared per common share( 1 ) ( 8 ) $ 0 . 1 0 5 0 $ 0 . 1 0 0 0 $ 0 . 0 7 5 0 $ 0 . 0 3 5 0 $ —

Earnings per share—assuming dilution( 2 ) ( 8 ) $ 2 . 2 3 $ 1 . 8 9 $ 1 . 0 2 $ 0 . 6 7 $ 0 . 5 4

Statement of Financial Condition Data

Loans held for securitization or sale $ — $ — $ — $ 4 5 0 , 2 3 3 $ 7 3 9 , 7 0 6

Loans receivable( 3 ) 13 , 7 7 0 , 1 5 7 1 1 , 6 0 9 , 9 5 4 5 , 7 4 1 , 1 0 6 2 , 9 6 0 , 6 7 6 2 , 9 4 9 , 9 2 8

Allowance for credit losses ( 1 , 4 4 5 , 6 3 8 ) ( 1 , 0 2 8 , 3 7 7 ) ( 4 5 1 , 2 4 5 ) ( 1 4 5 , 3 1 2 ) ( 1 1 4 , 5 4 0 )

Total assets 1 8 , 0 5 5 , 3 1 3 1 4 , 3 4 0 , 8 7 7 7 , 2 3 1 , 2 1 5 4 , 4 4 9 , 4 1 3 4 , 3 5 1 , 7 4 2

D e p o s i t s 1 3 , 1 1 3 , 4 1 6 1 0 , 5 3 8 , 1 2 3 4 , 6 7 2 , 2 9 8 3 , 2 1 2 , 7 6 6 3 , 3 9 0 , 1 1 2

B o r r o w i n g s 1 , 0 4 2 , 9 0 7 1 , 0 8 4 , 3 4 5 8 7 2 , 2 5 7 2 3 2 , 0 0 0 2 5 8 , 5 0 0

E q u i t y 2 , 0 3 2 , 1 8 3 1 , 3 3 2 , 4 7 6 8 0 3 , 1 8 7 5 9 5 , 1 1 4 4 8 3 , 1 4 4

Managed Financial Data

Credit cards $ 2 7 , 1 0 8 , 9 3 8 $ 1 9 , 0 4 9 , 5 9 1 $ 1 2 , 1 3 8 , 3 8 0 $ 8 , 8 3 8 , 6 0 7 $ 8 , 3 4 8 , 2 5 2

Home loans 1 3 , 8 7 7 1 , 9 7 6 , 8 6 2 1 , 1 0 6 , 5 6 8 1 , 0 6 3 , 4 4 6 9 5 1 , 3 8 2

Total consumer loans $ 2 7 , 1 2 2 , 8 1 5 $ 2 1 , 0 2 6 , 4 5 3 $ 1 3 , 2 4 4 , 9 4 8 $ 9 , 9 0 2 , 0 5 3 $ 9 , 2 9 9 , 6 3 4

Securitized loans $ 1 3 , 3 5 2 , 6 5 8 $ 9 , 4 1 6 , 4 9 9 $ 7 , 5 0 3 , 8 4 2 $ 6 , 4 9 1 , 1 4 4 $ 5 , 6 1 0 , 0 0 0

Managed revenue 5 , 7 8 3 , 5 8 6 4 , 1 9 5 , 2 3 2 2 , 3 7 3 , 0 1 2 1 , 5 0 7 , 2 2 3 1 , 0 9 3 , 6 1 0

Key Statistics

Total accounts (000s) at year- e n d 1 6 , 2 7 0 1 2 , 3 9 4 7 , 9 0 4 4 , 6 1 7 3 , 8 4 9

Managed net interest margin( 4 ) 1 2 . 6 0 % 1 2 . 3 3 % 1 1 . 8 0 % 1 1 . 2 3 % 1 0 . 8 9 %

Managed delinquency ratio( 5 ) 7 . 5 2 % 5 . 6 6 % 5 . 3 3 % 4 . 2 2 % 4 . 3 6 %

Managed loan net credit loss ratio( 6 ) 7 . 7 1 % 6 . 9 4 % 7 . 5 8 % 6 . 3 2 % 4 . 8 2 %

Net income to average managed assets( 7 ) 2 . 3 6 % 3 . 0 2 % 2 . 3 0 % 1 . 8 1 % 1 . 9 1 %

Net income to average equity 3 9 . 2 1 % 5 2 . 3 7 % 4 2 . 7 6 % 3 6 . 7 9 % 3 8 . 4 3 %

Equity to managed assets 6 . 5 8 % 5 . 6 2 % 5 . 5 0 % 5 . 2 9 % 4 . 8 5 %

(1) On June 10, 1997, Providian Financial Corporation began operations as a separate stand-alone entity. Prior to that date it operated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Providian Corporation.
Cash dividends declared during 1997 represent cash dividends paid to common shareholders subsequent to June 10, 1997.  (2) Earnings per share—assuming dilution for the years prior
to 1998 are pro forma and have been computed by reducing net income as reported by pro forma adjustments to arrive at pro forma net income available to common shareholders and 
then dividing this number by the pro forma weighted average number of common shares outstanding. See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this document.
(3) Represents all consumer credit products.  (4) Reflects total interest accrued on managed consumer loans, less the Company’s actual cost of funds, costs associated with securitizations,
including investor interest, amortization of fees, and accretion of discounts, as a percentage of average managed consumer loans.  (5) Reflects delinquencies, i.e., consumer loans that are
30 days or more past due, at period end, as a percentage of managed consumer loans at period end.  (6) Represents principal amounts charged off, less recoveries, as a percentage of
average managed consumer loans during the period; fraud losses are not included.  (7) Average managed assets include total managed assets of the Company, including all consumer loan
portfolios.  (8) All common share and per common share data have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend in November 2000.

Selected Financial Data
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This discussion is intended to further the reader’s understanding of the

consolidated financial condition and results of operations of Providian

Financial Corporation (the “Company”). It should be read in conjunction

with the Company’s historical financial statements included in this 

Annual Report and the data set forth under “Selected Financial Data.”

The historical financial statements of the Company may not be indicative

of the Company’s future performance. Certain prior year amounts

included in the tables herein have been reclassified to conform to the

2000 presentation.

Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements in this Annual Report are forward-looking state-

ments within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,

as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as

amended, and are subject to the “safe harbor” created by those sections.

Forward-looking statements include expressions of “belief,” “anticipation,”

or “expectations” of management, statements as to industry trends or

future results of operations of the Company, and other statements that

are not historical fact. Forward-looking statements are based on certain

assumptions by management and are subject to risks and uncertainties

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the

forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but

are not limited to, competition, delinquencies, credit losses, vendor rela-

tionships, funding costs and availability, general economic conditions,

government policy and regulations, risks related to growth, product devel-

opment, acquisitions, operations, and litigation. These and other risks

and uncertainties are described in detail in the Company’s 2000 Annual

Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Cautionary Statements.” Readers

are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking state-

ment, which speaks only as of the date thereof. The Company under-

takes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements.

Introduction

The Company is a leading provider of consumer lending and deposit

products offered primarily through its banking subsidiaries, Providian

National Bank, a national bank, and Providian Bank, a Utah industrial loan

corporation. The Company’s products are offered to consumers within

the United States, the United Kingdom, and Argentina. The Company’s

market focus is to seek out profitable consumer segments and develop

products and services to meet their needs while applying its risk adjusted

return approach to market segmentation and product pricing. This

approach allows the Company to offer a variety of products with a range

of yields based on the level of risk undertaken. The primary factors 

affecting the profitability of the Company’s consumer lending business

are growth in the number of customer accounts and outstanding loan 

balances, net interest spread on loans, fee revenue, credit usage, credit

quality (delinquencies and credit losses), solicitation and marketing

expenses, and account servicing efficiency.

The Company generates revenue primarily through finance charges

assessed on outstanding loan balances, through fees paid by customers

related to account usage and performance (such as late, overlimit, cash

advance, processing, and annual membership fees), and from the sale

of various cardholder service products. The Company receives inter-

change fees from bankcard associations based on the purchase activity

of its credit card customers. In addition, the Company earns revenue on

its investments held for liquidity purposes and servicing fees and excess

servicing on securitized loans.

The Company’s primary expenses are asset funding costs, credit

losses, operating expenses, including salaries and employee benefits,

advertising and solicitation costs, data processing and communication

costs, and income taxes. The Company also recognized $309.3 million

of settlement expenses during the year ended December 31, 2000,

which are more fully described below. Solicitation costs (such as print-

ing, postage, and credit bureau costs) are incurred and expensed prior

to the acquisition of new accounts, while the revenue associated with 

an account is earned over the life of the account. In accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP),

direct nonsolicitation costs associated with the acquisition of an account

are capitalized, offset against up-front processing fees, and amortized

over the life of the account (currently one year for credit cards). As a

result, the majority of account acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

In October 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a

two-for-one split of the Company’s common stock in the form of a stock

dividend issued on November 30, 2000 to shareholders of record on

November 15, 2000. Accordingly, all common share and per common

share data for all periods presented have been retroactively adjusted to

include the effect of the Company’s stock split.

The following one-time adjustments occurred during 2000 and are

reflected in the Company’s financial results for the year:

Settlements In June 2000, the Company reached settlements with

the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the San Francisco District

Attorney, the California Attorney General, and the Connecticut Attorney

General with respect to certain business practices. In December 2000,

the Company announced that it had reached an agreement to resolve a

number of class action lawsuits, primarily involving the marketing of the

Company’s cardholder service products, that had been consolidated in

the California Superior Court of San Francisco and the Federal District

Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. Court approval of the

class action settlements is required. In connection with the settlements,

the Company agreed to make certain business practice changes and to

pay restitution to affected customers. The Company recorded a net 
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pre-tax charge of $272.6 million and $36.7 million during the second 

and fourth quarters of 2000 to non-interest expense on its consolidated

statements of income, relating to the Company’s obligations under the

settlement agreements.

Sale of the Home Loan Business In February 2000, the Company

announced a realignment of resources previously dedicated to its home

loan business. The Company transitioned these resources, including

employees and facilities, into its credit card and e-commerce businesses.

In June 2000, the Company sold $1.5 billion of home equity loans and

recognized a pre-tax gain of $64.7 million in non-interest income on its

consolidated statements of income.

Earnings Summary

The following discussion provides a summary of 2000 results compared

to 1999 results and 1999 results compared to 1998 results. Each com-

ponent of the results is discussed in further detail in subsequent sections

of this discussion.

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended Decem-

ber 31, 1999 Net income for the year ended December 31, 2000

increased to $651.8 million. Excluding the impact of the settlements

related to legal proceedings (“one-time charges”) and the sale of the

home loan business (“one-time gain”), net income for the year ended

December 31, 2000 was $798.5 million, an increase of 45% from

$550.3 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. Growth in out-

standing loan balances and customer accounts and improved customer

retention were the principal drivers of the Company’s performance 

during 2000.

As of December 31, 2000, managed credit card loans, which

include reported and securitized loans, were $27.11 billion, an increase

of $8.06 billion, or 42%, over the balance at December 31, 1999. This

growth in managed credit card loans was achieved through increases 

in the Company’s loan originations, improved customer retention, and

increased purchase activity by existing customers, which was facil-

itated by the Company’s ability to offer proven customers enhanced

products and higher credit lines. Managed accounts grew by 3.9 million,

or 31%, as a result of various marketing campaigns and customer 

satisfaction programs.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, managed net interest

income increased 40% to $2.94 billion, compared to $2.11 billion for

1999. The Company’s managed net interest margin on loans increased

to 12.60% for 2000 compared to 12.33% for 1999, reflecting growth in

higher yielding loans combined with a moderate increase in the cost of

funds. The managed net credit loss rate for 2000 increased to 7.71%

from 6.94% for 1999. This increase reflects account seasoning within

the managed portfolio and the change in loan mix to a larger concentra-

tion of higher yielding portfolios, which experience credit loss rates above

the Company’s lower yielding portfolios. Consistent with the Company’s

expectations, the 30+ day managed delinquency rate as of Decem-

ber 31, 2000 increased to 7.52% from 5.66% as of December 31,

1999. Account seasoning is expected to result in a continued increase

in the Company’s managed net credit loss rate in 2001. The dollar con-

tribution to managed revenue from non-interest income for the year 2000

increased 33% over 1999 to $2.77 billion, excluding the one-time gain,

due primarily to increased revenue from credit product fees. Managed

non-interest expense increased to $2.47 billion in 2000. Excluding one-

time charges, non-interest expense increased $591.1 million during 2000

to $2.16 billion. The increase in non-interest expense reflects the Com-

pany’s continued investments in marketing initiatives and its customer

service infrastructure.

The return on reported assets for 2000 was 3.74%. Excluding one-

time adjustments, return on reported assets was 4.59% for 2000, down

from 5.37% for 1999. The decrease is primarily the result of the Com-

pany’s decision to strengthen its balance sheet liquidity by increasing its

holdings in lower yielding, more liquid investment securities. The return

on average managed assets for 2000 was 2.36%, or 2.89% excluding 
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one-time adjustments, compared to 3.02% in 1999. Return on equity for

2000 was 39.21%, or 48.04% excluding one-time adjustments, down

from 52.37% for 1999.

Year Ended December 31, 1999 Compared to Year Ended Decem-

ber 31, 1998 Net income for the year ended December 31, 1999 was

$550.3 million, representing an increase of 86% over net income of

$296.4 million for the year ended December 31, 1998. The underlying

drivers of the Company’s performance during 1999 were account and

managed loan growth, which drove revenue growth. Managed loans

increased by $7.78 billion, or 59%, in 1999. This growth was achieved

through increases in the Company’s loan originations and line increases

for qualifying customers. Accounts under management increased by 

4.5 million in 1999.

Managed net interest income was $2.11 billion in 1999, compared

to $1.36 billion in 1998, representing 55% growth. The managed net

interest margin on loans increased to 12.33% in 1999 from 11.80% in

1998. This increase resulted from a 44% increase in average managed

loans, concentrated in the Company’s higher yielding portfolios, and

reduced reliance on low introductory rate offers. Managed non-interest

income grew 106% to $2.09 billion in 1999, compared to $1.01 billion

in 1998. The combined growth in accounts and credit product fee income

drove these positive results.

The managed net credit loss rate decreased to 6.94% in 1999 from

7.58% in 1998, reflecting strong asset growth and improved credit loss

rates on acquired portfolios. The 30+ day managed delinquency rate as

of December 31, 1999 increased to 5.66% from 5.33% for the same

date in 1998, reflecting the seasoning of the Company’s higher yielding

portfolios. Non-interest expense increased $746.1 million during 1999 to

$1.57 billion due to the expenses associated with servicing a greater

number of customers and increased marketing expenditures.

Managed Consumer Loan Portfolio and the Impact of Securitization

The Company securitizes consumer loans in order to diversify funding

sources and to obtain an efficient all-in cost of funds. For additional 

discussion of the Company’s securitization activities, see “—Funding

and Liquidity.” Securitized loans sold to investors are not considered

assets of the Company and therefore are not shown on the Company’s

consolidated statements of financial condition. It is, however, the Com-

pany’s practice to analyze its financial performance on a managed basis.

To perform this analysis, the Company uses an adjusted income state-

ment and statement of financial condition, which add back the effect 

of securitizations.

Financial Statement Impact The Company’s securitizations are

treated as sales under GAAP. The Company receives the proceeds of

the sale and the securitized loans are removed from the Company’s con-

solidated statements of financial condition. In certain cases, the Company

has retained a subordinated interest in the pool of assets included in 

a securitization, with a right to receive collections allocated to such 

subordinated interest after payment to senior investors. Such retained

interests are recorded at fair value and are included in due from securi-

tizations on the Company’s consolidated statements of financial condi-

tion. At the time it enters into a securitization, the Company recognizes

an “interest-only strip receivable” asset, which is the present value of the

projected excess servicing income during the period the securitized

loans are projected to be outstanding. “Excess servicing income” refers

to the excess of the finance charge and fee revenue generated by the

securitized loans over the sum of the interest paid to investors, related

credit losses, servicing fees, and other transaction expenses.

During the revolving period of a securitization, no principal pay-

ments are made to the investors. Instead, monthly principal payments

received on the loans are used to purchase replacement loans receiv-

able from the Company, and the Company recognizes additional interest-

only strips receivable. Revenue resulting from excess servicing income

is recognized each month, first as a reduction of the interest-only strip

receivable and then, to the extent the amount received exceeds the

related component of the interest-only strip receivable, as servicing and

securitization income.

When loans are securitized, the Company retains a “seller’s inter-

est” generally equal to the total amount of the pool of assets included in

the securitization less the sum of the investors’ portion of those assets

and the subordinated interests retained by the Company. As the amount

of the loans in the securitized pool fluctuates due to customer payments,

purchases, cash advances, and credit losses, the amount of the seller’s

interest will vary. The seller’s interest is classified on the Company’s con-

solidated statements of financial condition as loans receivable at par with

an associated allowance for credit losses. Periodically, the Company

may transfer new loans into a securitized pool in order to maintain the

seller’s interest above an agreed-upon minimum.

The Company continues to service the accounts underlying the

securitized loans and earns a monthly servicing fee, which is generally

offset by the servicing costs incurred by the Company. Accordingly, 

servicing assets have not been recognized in connection with the

Company’s securitizations.

The effect of securitization accounting on the Company’s consoli-

dated statements of income is to reduce net interest income and the 

provision for credit losses, and to increase non-interest income. For 

the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, securitization

accounting had the effect of reducing net interest income by $1.12 bil-

lion, $933.1 million, and $766.6 million; reducing the provision for credit

losses by $710.5 million, $607.5 million, and $511.5 million; and increas-

ing non-interest income by $409.2 million, $325.6 million, and $255.1 mil-

lion. Because credit losses on the securitized loans are reflected as a

reduction in servicing and securitization income rather than a reduction
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of the allowance for credit losses, the Company’s provision for credit

losses is lower than if such loans had not been securitized. The follow-

ing table summarizes the Company’s managed loan portfolio:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Year-End Balances

Reported 

consumer loans $ 13,770,157 $ 11,609,954 $ 5,741,106

Securitized 

consumer loans 13,352,658 9,416,499 7,503,842

Total managed 

consumer 

loan portfolio $ 27,122,815 $ 21,026,453 $ 13,244,948

Average Balances

Reported 

consumer loans $ 12,922,443 $ 8,399,577 $ 4,621,709

Securitized 

consumer loans 10,250,116 8,082,412 6,821,800

Total average 

managed 

consumer 

loan portfolio $ 23,172,559 $ 16,481,989 $ 11,443,509

Operating Data and Ratios

Reported:

Average earning 

assets $ 16,436,478 $ 9,600,878 $ 5,237,785

Return on average 

assets 3.74% 5.37% 5.10%

Net interest margin(1) 11.11% 12.24% 11.37%

Managed:

Average earning 

assets $ 26,686,594 $ 17,683,290 $ 12,059,585

Return on average 

assets 2.36% 3.02% 2.30%

Net interest margin(1) 11.03% 11.92% 11.29%

(1) Net interest margin is equal to net interest income divided by average earning assets.

Cash Flow Impact When loans are securitized, the Company receives

cash proceeds from investors net of transaction fees and expenses. The

Company uses these proceeds to reduce alternative funding liabilities,

invest in short-term liquid investments, and for other general corporate

purposes. The investors’ share of finance charge and fee revenue gen-

erated by the securitized loans is distributed each month to pay interest

to investors, related credit losses, servicing fees, credit enhancement

costs, and other transaction expenses. Any finance charge and fee cash

flow remaining after such payments is treated as excess servicing income

and is generally retained by or remitted back to the Company. During the

revolving period of a securitization, the Company retains the investors’

share of monthly principal collections, net of credit losses, which is used

to purchase additional loans receivable for transfer into the securitized

pool of assets. During the amortization or accumulation period of a secu-

ritization, the investors’ share of principal collections (in certain cases,

up to a specified amount each month) is either distributed each month

to the investors or held in an account for accumulation and later distri-

bution to the investors.

Risk Adjusted Revenue and Return

One measure of product profitability that incorporates revenue and the

most significant costs inherent in consumer loan risk analysis is risk

adjusted revenue, which is net interest income on loans plus non-interest

income less net credit losses. The Company uses risk adjusted revenue

as a measure of loan portfolio profitability, consistent with its goal of match-

ing the revenue base of customer accounts with the risks undertaken.

Risk adjusted revenue may also be expressed as a percentage of aver-

age consumer loans, in which case it is referred to as risk adjusted return.

Managed risk adjusted revenue and return on loans for the year

ended December 31, 2000 were $3.97 billion and 17.14%. Exclud-

ing one-time adjustments, managed risk adjusted revenue and return

were $3.91 billion and 16.86% for the year ended December 31, 2000,
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compared to $2.97 billion and 18.05% for 1999. The increase in man-

aged risk adjusted revenue during 2000 was primarily a result of portfo-

lio growth as well as a shift to a higher yielding portfolio mix. The

decrease in managed risk adjusted return was primarily due to 

the increase in the managed net credit loss rate, which was 7.71% for

the year ended December 31, 2000, compared to 6.94% for the 

previous year.

Managed risk adjusted revenue and return on loans for the year

ended December 31, 1999 were $2.97 billion and 18.05%, compared

to $1.49 billion and 13.06% for the year ended December 31, 1998. The

increase during 1999 was a result of growth in higher yielding portfolios,

declining use of introductory rates on new accounts, and strong growth

in fee revenue per customer. The increase in managed risk adjusted 

revenue and return also reflected a decrease in the managed net credit

loss rate, which was 6.94% for the year ended December 31, 1999,

compared to 7.58% for the previous year, due to strong asset growth

and declining credit loss rates on acquired portfolios.

The components of risk adjusted revenue are discussed in more

detail in subsequent sections of this Management’s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Net Interest Income and Margin

Net interest income is interest earned from loan and investment portfo-

lios less interest expense on deposits and borrowings. Managed net

interest income also includes net interest income and interest earned

from securitized loans less interest paid to securitization investors.

Managed net interest income for the year ended December 31,

2000 was $2.94 billion, compared to $2.11 billion for 1999, represent-

ing an increase of $0.84 billion, or 40%. Managed net interest margin

on average managed earning assets decreased to 11.03% for the year

ended December 31, 2000, from 11.92% for 1999. The increase in

managed net interest income resulted from an increase of more than 

$6 billion in average managed loans and higher finance charge yields.

The higher finance charge yields resulted from a change in the credit

card loan portfolio mix and the divestiture of our lower yielding home loan

portfolio. The decrease in managed net interest margin on average man-

aged earning assets was primarily due to increased investment in more

liquid investment securities, which realize lower yields.

Managed net interest income for the year ended December 31,

1999 was $2.11 billion, compared to $1.36 billion for 1998, representing

an increase of $0.75 billion, or 55%. Managed net interest margin on

average managed earning assets increased to 11.92% for the year ended

December 31, 1999, from 11.29% for 1998. The increase in managed

net interest income and margin resulted from an increase of approxi-

mately $5 billion in average managed loans, with the greatest percent-

age of account growth in the Company’s higher yielding loan portfolios.

The Company offers both fixed and variable rate consumer loan

products and maintains both fixed and variable rate funding sources. See

“—Asset/Liability Risk Management” for a discussion of the Company’s

interest rate risk management strategy.
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Statement of Average Balances, Income and Expense, Yields and Rates

The following table provides an analysis of reported interest income, interest expense, net interest spread, and average balances for the years ended

December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998. Interest income and interest expense margins are presented as a percentage of average earning assets, which

include interest-earning consumer loan portfolios and investments held for liquidity purposes.

Year ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
(dollars in thousands) Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Consumer loans $ 12,922,443 $ 2,468,595 19.10% $ 8,399,577 $ 1,559,285 18.56% $ 4,621,709 $ 807,824 17.48%

Interest-earning cash 144,170 8,850 6.14% 127,455 6,222 4.88% 43,493 2,262 5.20%

Federal funds sold 1,371,550 85,899 6.26% 663,884 34,334 5.17% 264,669 14,071 5.32%

Investment securities 1,998,315 136,603 6.84% 409,962 24,435 5.96% 307,914 18,422 5.98%

Total interest-earning 

assets 16,436,478 $ 2,699,947 16.43% 9,600,878 $ 1,624,276 16.92% 5,237,785 $ 842,579 16.09%

Allowance for 

loan losses (1,252,198) (700,908) (327,689)

Other assets 2,222,792 1,344,302 897,403

Total assets $ 17,407,072 $ 10,244,272 $ 5,807,499

Liabilities and Equity

Interest-bearing 

liabilities

Deposits $ 13,014,183 $ 812,986 6.25% $ 6,495,080 $ 356,736 5.49% $ 3,736,523 $ 204,335 5.47%

Borrowings 1,020,158 62,188 6.10% 1,543,719 92,334 5.98% 712,478 42,931 6.03%

Total interest-bearing 

liabilities 14,034,341 $ 875,174 6.24% 8,038,799 $ 449,070 5.59% 4,449,001 $ 247,266 5.56%

Other liabilities 1,555,782 994,783 505,167

Total liabilities 15,590,123 9,033,582 4,954,168

Capital securities 154,893 160,000 160,000

Equity 1,662,056 1,050,690 693,331

Total liabilities and 

equity $ 17,407,072 $ 10,244,272 $ 5,807,499

Net Interest Spread 10.19% 11.33% 10.53%

Interest income to average 

interest-earning assets 16.43% 16.92% 16.09%

Interest expense to average 

interest-earning assets 5.32% 4.68% 4.72%

Net interest margin 11.11% 12.24% 11.37%
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Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income, which consists primarily of servicing and securiti-

zation income and credit product fee income, increased to $3.25 billion

for the year ended December 31, 2000. Excluding the one-time gain, 

non-interest income rose 32% to $3.18 billion in 2000, from $2.41 bil-

lion in 1999. This increase was primarily attributable to increased credit

product fee income resulting from growth in the customer base,

increased securitization servicing income, and increased excess servic-

ing income.

Total non-interest income increased 90.5%, or $1.15 billion, to

$2.41 billion in 1999 over 1998. This increase was attributable to

increased credit product fee income, and higher average securitized 

loan balances.

Servicing and Securitization Income Servicing and securitization

income relates directly to securitized loans. It includes a servicing fee,

which generally offsets the Company’s cost of servicing the securitized

loans, excess servicing income, and gains or losses from the securitiza-

tion of financial assets (see “—Managed Consumer Loan Portfolio and

the Impact of Securitization”).
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Interest Volume and Rate Variance Analysis

Net interest income is affected by changes in the average interest rate earned on interest-earning assets and the average interest rate paid on 

interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income is also affected by changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The

following table sets forth the dollar amount of the increase (decrease) in reported interest income and expense resulting from changes in volume 

and rates:

Year ended December 31,

2000 vs. 1999 1999 vs. 1998

Change due to(1) Change due to(1)

(dollars in thousands) Increase (Decrease) Volume Rate Increase (Decrease) Volume Rate

Interest Income

Consumer loans $ 909,310 $ 862,696 $ 46,614 $ 751,461 $ 698,653 $ 52,808

Federal funds sold 51,565 43,050 8,515 20,263 20,671 (408)

Other securities 114,796 108,935 5,861 9,973 10,182 (209)

Total interest income 1,075,671 1,014,681 60,990 781,697 729,506 52,191

Interest Expense

Deposits 456,250 400,949 55,301 152,401 151,650 751

Borrowings (30,146) (31,960) 1,814 49,403 49,762 (359)

Total interest expense 426,104 368,989 57,115 201,804 201,412 392

Net interest income $ 649,567 $ 645,692 $ 3,875 $ 579,893 $ 528,094 $ 51,799

(1) The changes due to both volume and rates have been allocated in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each. The changes in interest income
and expense are calculated independently for each line in the table.

Non-Interest Income
($ in billions)

3.18*

1998 1999 2000

1.27

2.41

*Excludes one-time gain.



The Company has issued more than $20 billion in public and 

private asset-backed securities since 1989 and has increased the

amount of receivables securitized as the amount of total managed loans

has increased. As of December 31, 2000, securitizations outstanding

provided $12.81 billion in funding, or 45% of total managed funding,

compared with $9.35 billion, or 42%, as of December 31, 1999 and

$7.38 billion, or 53%, as of December 31, 1998. The increase in secu-

ritizations outstanding as a percentage of total managed funding in 2000

was a result of favorable market conditions for the securitization of loans.

As market conditions warrant, securitization as a component of total man-

aged funding may increase or decrease in the future. A more detailed

discussion of the Company’s funding sources and the role of securitiza-

tion activities is set forth under “—Funding and Liquidity.”

Because excess servicing income on securitized loans essentially

represents a recharacterization of net interest income and credit product

fee income less the provision for loan losses and servicing expense, it

will vary based upon the same factors that affect those items. Thus,

changes in net credit losses (see “—Asset Quality, Net Credit Losses”)

and changes in interest rates (to the extent that the receivables and inter-

est payable to investors are based upon floating rates) will cause excess

servicing income to vary (see “—Asset/Liability Risk Management”).

For the year ended December 31, 2000, servicing and securitiza-

tion income increased $235.1 million from the prior year, to $855.3 mil-

lion. This increase resulted from higher average securitized loans

outstanding and was enhanced by interest earned on principal funding

accounts maintained in 2000 to fund the repayment of securitizations 

in 2000.

For the year ended December 31, 1999, servicing and securitiza-

tion income increased $60.9 million from the prior year, to $620.2 mil-

lion. This increase reflected higher overall finance charge and fee revenue

on securitized loans and higher average securitized loans, partially 

offset by increased net credit losses. See “—Managed Consumer Loan

Portfolio and the Impact of Securitization.”

Credit Product Fee Income Credit product fee income includes

interchange income, annual membership income, cash advance and

processing fees, and other revenue arising primarily from cross-

marketing of cardholder service products. In addition, credit product fee

income includes loan performance fees, such as late, overlimit, and

returned check charges.

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, credit

product fee income was $2.20 billion, $1.75 billion, and $0.70 billion.

The Company expects the growth rate of credit product fee income to

continue to moderate in 2001. Fee revenue realized from securitized 

loans is not included in credit product fee income but is instead recorded

as part of servicing and securitization income.

Growth in new customers, improved retention of existing cus-

tomers, and rising account activity contributed to an increase in credit

product fee income during the year ended December 31, 2000 over

1999. For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, loan

performance fees totaled $384.2 million, $386.4 million, and $197.4 mil-

lion. For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, other

credit product fee income totaled $1.82 billion, $1.37 billion, and 

$0.51 billion. Account growth resulted in increased annual membership

fees, cash advance fees, and interchange income as well as increases

in revenue from cardholder service products. During 2000, the Company

accelerated the recognition of the estimated uncollectible portion of

accrued fees on certain delinquent accounts, which were previously

reversed against fee revenue upon charge-off of the related accounts.

As a result of this adjustment, fee income totaling $95 million was

reversed, decreasing loans and credit product fee income. On an ongo-

ing basis, the Company continues to reverse the estimated uncollectible

portion of accrued fees on such delinquent accounts.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense includes salaries and employee benefits; loan 

solicitation and advertising costs; occupancy, furniture, and equipment

costs; data processing and communication costs; and other non-interest

expense. Loan solicitation and advertising costs include printing, postage,

telemarketing, list processing, and credit bureau costs paid to third 

parties in connection with account solicitation efforts, and also include

costs incurred to promote the Company’s products. In accordance with

GAAP, the loan origination costs capitalized by the Company are the

direct nonsolicitation costs associated with successful account acquisi-

tion efforts, after offsetting up-front processing fees. Capitalized loan

origination costs are amortized over the privilege period (currently one

year) for credit card loans unless the loans are securitized, in which case

the costs are taken as an expense prior to the securitization. The major-

ity of loan origination costs are expensed as incurred. In the years 

ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, the Company amortized

loan origination costs of $35.0 million, $63.0 million, and $44.9 mil-

lion. For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, total

loan solicitation and advertising costs, including amortized loan origi-

nation costs, were $550.4 million, $428.6 million, and $196.5 million.

This increase reflects new marketing initiatives, including television and

Internet advertising campaigns.
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Non-interest expense also includes salary and benefit expenses,

such as staffing costs associated with marketing, customer service, 

collections, and administration. Other non-interest expense includes

third-party data processing and communication costs, occupancy

expenses, and other operational expenses, such as collection costs,

fraud losses, and bankcard association assessments. In 2000, other non-

interest expense also included settlement charges of $272.6 million 

and $36.7 million, as described above. The following table presents 

non-interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, 

and 1998:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Non-Interest Expense

Salaries and 

employee benefits $ 705,228 $ 494,089 $ 265,411

Solicitation and 

advertising 550,390 428,617 196,528

Occupancy, furniture, 

and equipment 140,470 84,157 49,908

Data processing and 

communication 181,841 125,219 74,603

Other 893,574 439,044 238,550

Total $ 2,471,503 $ 1,571,126 $ 825,000

Income Taxes

The Company recognized income tax expense of $434.5 million, 

$367.2 million, and $194.1 million for the years ended December 31,

2000, 1999, and 1998. The Company’s effective tax rate was 40.0% 

for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, and 39.6% for the

year ended December 31, 1998. See Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements, included elsewhere herein, for further explanation of the

income tax expense and a reconciliation of reported income taxes to 

the amount computed by applying the United States federal statutory

rate to income before taxes.

Asset Quality

The Company’s delinquencies and net credit losses reflect, among other

factors, the quality of loans, the average age of the Company’s loans

receivable (generally referred to as “seasoning”), the success of the Com-

pany’s collection efforts, and general economic conditions. The quality

of loans is subject to the segmentation and underwriting criteria used,

account management, seasoning, and demographic and other factors.

The level of credit losses directly affects earnings when reserves

are established through recognition of provisions for credit losses.

Provisions for credit losses generally depend on historical levels of credit

losses and current trends. As new portfolios of consumer loans are orig-

inated or acquired, management uses historical credit loss and delin-

quency analysis of similar, more seasoned loan portfolios and certain

qualitative factors to establish an allowance for credit losses inherent 

in the existing portfolio (see “—Allowance and Provision for Credit

Losses”). As actual net credit losses are experienced, the previously

established reserve is used to absorb the credit losses. The Company

also adjusts the allowance for credit losses to reflect the sale of secu-

ritized loans and the removal of the related net loan value from the 

consolidated statements of financial condition.

The Company’s policy is to recognize principal credit losses on 

all delinquent unsecured loans (including the unsecured portion of 

any partially secured credit card loans) no more than 180 days after 

the delinquency occurs, unless the accountholder cures the default 

by making a partial payment that qualifies under the Company’s stan-

dards. Accounts of bankrupt credit card customers are charged off upon

notification of bankruptcy. Accounts of deceased credit card customers

are charged off upon determination of uncollectibility, but in no case 

later than 180 days after such loans become delinquent. At the time a

loan is charged off, accrued but unpaid finance charge and fee income,

if any, is reversed against current earnings but is maintained on the cus-

tomer’s record in the event of a future recovery. After a loan is charged

off, the Company continues collection activity to the extent legally per-

missible. Any collections on previously charged off loans are recognized

as recoveries.
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Net Credit Losses Net credit losses for consumer loans represent 

the principal amount of losses from customers who have not paid their 

existing loan balances (including charged-off bankrupt and deceased

customer accounts) less current period recoveries. The principal

amounts of such losses include cash advances, purchases, and certain

financed cardholder service product sales, and exclude accrued finance

charge income, fee income, and fraud losses.

The managed net credit loss rate was 7.71% for the year ended

December 31, 2000, and 6.94% for 1999. The increased managed net

credit loss rate, which was partially offset by higher net interest margins,

reflects the overall change in the loan portfolio composition, including the

sale of home loans discussed above, and the growth and seasoning of 

the Company’s higher yielding portfolios. The continued seasoning of the

Company’s higher yielding portfolios is expected to result in an increase

in the managed net credit loss rate in 2001. The Company’s pricing for

finance charge and fee income incorporates an expected higher credit

loss rate when appropriate, consistent with the Company’s risk adjusted

return approach.
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Delinquencies An account is contractually delinquent if the minimum payment is not received by the next billing date. Total 30+ day delinquen-

cies on managed loans increased to 7.52% as of December 31, 2000 from 5.66% as of December 31, 1999. This increase reflects the overall change

in the loan portfolio composition, including the sale of home loans discussed above, and the growth and seasoning of the Company’s higher 

yielding portfolios. The following table presents the delinquency trends of the Company’s reported and managed consumer loan portfolios as of

December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998:

December 31,

2000 1999 1998

% of % of % of
(dollars in thousands) Loans Total Loans Loans Total Loans Loans Total Loans

Reported

Loans outstanding $ 13,770,157 100.00% $ 11,609,954 100.00% $ 5,741,106 100.00%

Loans delinquent

30–59 days $ 414,735 3.01% $ 245,690 2.11% $ 116,827 2.03%

60–89 days 301,757 2.19% 176,367 1.52% 73,784 1.29%

90 or more days 518,338 3.77% 370,262 3.19% 135,980 2.37%

Total $ 1,234,830 8.97% $ 792,319 6.82% $ 326,591 5.69%

Managed

Loans outstanding $ 27,122,815 100.00% $ 21,026,453 100.00% $ 13,244,948 100.00%

Loans delinquent

30–59 days $ 682,011 2.51% $ 388,240 1.84% $ 254,329 1.92%

60–89 days 484,706 1.79% 266,234 1.27% 156,276 1.18%

90 or more days 874,116 3.22% 535,361 2.55% 295,967 2.23%

Total $ 2,040,833 7.52% $ 1,189,835 5.66% $ 706,572 5.33%

30+ Day Delinquency & Credit Loss Ratios
(percent)

1998 1999 2000

7.58

5.33

6.94

5.66

7.71 7.52

Managed loan net credit loss ratio
Managed loan delinquency ratio



The managed net credit loss rate decreased to 6.94% for the year

ended December 31, 1999, compared to 7.58% for 1998, reflecting

strong asset growth and improved credit loss rates on acquired port-

folios combined with stable credit loss rates on credit card portfolios

originated by the Company.

The following table presents the Company’s net credit losses for

consumer loans for the periods indicated and is presented both on a

financial statement reporting basis and a managed portfolio basis:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Reported

Average loans 

outstanding $ 12,922,443 $ 8,399,577 $ 4,621,709

Net credit losses $ 1,075,328 $ 536,299 $ 356,140

Net credit losses 

as a percentage 

of average loans 

outstanding 8.32% 6.38% 7.71%

Managed

Average loans 

outstanding $ 23,172,559 $ 16,481,989 $ 11,443,509

Net credit losses $ 1,785,840 $ 1,143,849 $ 867,611

Net credit losses 

as a percentage 

of average loans 

outstanding 7.71% 6.94% 7.58%

Allowance and Provision for Credit Losses The Company maintains its

allowance for credit losses at a level estimated to be adequate to absorb

future credit losses, net of recoveries, inherent in the existing reported loan

portfolio. The allowance for credit losses is maintained for reported loans

only (see “—Managed Consumer Loan Portfolio and the Impact of Secu-

ritization”). Accordingly, the entire allowance is allocated to designated

portfolios or pools of the Company’s reported loans.

As part of the quantitative evaluation of the allowance for credit

losses, the Company segregates loans by portfolio type. These include

portfolios of various types of credit card products and acquired loan port-

folios. The quantitative factors the Company uses to establish portfolio-

level reserves are historical delinquencies, historical credit loss rates,

level of security (if applicable), customer characteristics, and other fac-

tors. Loan portfolios are grouped into homogeneous pools, and certain

qualitative factors, consistent with applicable bank regulatory guidelines,

are applied to each pool and portfolio to further evaluate the adequacy

of the allowance for that pool or portfolio. These qualitative factors

include general economic conditions, trends in loan portfolio volume 

and seasoning, geographic concentrations, and recent modifications to

loan review and underwriting procedures. The Company compares

actual credit loss performance against estimated credit losses, and may

modify its loan loss allowance evaluation model accordingly.
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Net Credit Losses & Provision
($ in millions)

1998 1999 2000

356

546 536

1,099 1,075

1,515

Net credit losses
Provision

On-Balance Sheet Loans & 
Allowance for Credit Losses
($ in millions)

1998 1999 2000

5,741

11,610

13,770

On-balance sheet loans
Allowance for credit losses

451
1,028 1,446



The following table sets forth the activity in the allowance for credit

losses for the years indicated:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Balance at beginning 

of period $ 1,028,377 $ 451,245 $ 145,312

Provision for credit 

losses 1,515,350 1,099,131 545,929

Reserve acquired/

other (22,617) 14,303 116,144

Foreign currency 

translation (144) (3) —

Credit losses (1,188,033) (609,947) (389,587)

Recoveries 112,705 73,648 33,447

Balance at end 

of period $ 1,445,638 $ 1,028,377 $ 451,245

Allowance for credit 

losses to loans 

at period-end 10.50% 8.86% 7.86%

Loan balance $ 13,770,157 $ 11,609,954 $ 5,741,106

The allowance for credit losses increased to $1.45 billion, or 10.50% 

of reported loans, as of December 31, 2000, from $1.03 billion, or

8.86% of reported loans, as of December 31, 1999. This increase in 

the allowance for credit losses as a percentage of reported loans 

reflects the growth and seasoning of the Company’s higher yielding

credit card portfolios, which are generally expected to experience higher

credit loss rates (see “—Risk Adjusted Return and Revenue”).

Funding and Liquidity

The Company funds its assets through a diversified mix of funding

products designed to appeal to a broad range of investors, with the goal

of generating funding at the lowest cost possible while maintaining 

liquidity at prudent levels and managing interest rate risk.

The primary goal of the Company’s liquidity management is to

ensure that funding will be available to support Company operations in

varying business environments. The Company employs multiple strate-

gies to maintain a strong liquidity position, including diversification of

funding sources, dispersion of maturities, maintenance of a prudent

investment portfolio and cash balances, and maintenance of committed

credit facilities.

Funding Sources and Maturities The Company seeks to fund its

assets by diversifying its distribution channels and offering a variety of

funding products. Among the products offered are retail and institutional

deposits, money market accounts, public and private asset securitiza-

tions, term federal funds, and bank notes. Distribution channels include

direct phone and mail, brokerage and investment banking relationships,

and the Internet.

The Company offers maturity terms for its funding products that

range from one week to 30 years. Actual maturity distributions depend

on several factors, including expected asset duration, investor demand,

relative costs, shape of the yield curve, and anticipated issuances in 

the securitization and capital markets. Maturities are managed by the

types of funding sources available and by the rates offered on different

products. The Company seeks to maintain a balanced distribution of

maturities, avoiding undue concentration in any one period. The Com-

pany monitors existing funding maturities and loan growth projec-

tions with the objective of ensuring that liquidity levels are adequate 

to support maturities.
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5,111,626

1,060,909

4,365,588

1,084,345

1,492,476

6,266,923

5,916,529

929,964

1,042,907

2,143,240

Funding Sources
($ in thousands)

Deposits ≤ one year
Deposits > one year
Deposits w/o maturity

Borrowed funds
Total capital (includes capital securities)

December 31, 2000 December 31, 1999



Deposits increased to $13.11 billion as of December 31, 2000 from 

$10.54 billion as of December 31, 1999. This increase was attributable

to the Company’s continuing strategy of maintaining a large deposit fund-

ing base and strong demand for FDIC-insured deposits.

The Company securitizes loans in order to diversify funding sources

and obtain efficient all-in cost of funds, including the cost of capital. The

securitizations are diversified across the public and private securitization

markets and across maturity terms. Pools of securitized loans provide

cash flow for securities sold to investors under legal structures that 

generally provide for an interest-only (revolving) period and a principal

repayment (amortization or accumulation) period. During the amortiza-

tion or accumulation period, payments on the securitized loans are dis-

tributed or accumulated for payment to the securitization investors, and

the portion of the securitized pool of assets reported on the Company’s

consolidated statements of financial condition will generally increase as

a result of such distribution or accumulation.

Private securitizations may utilize commercial paper-based conduit

facilities and other variable funding programs to securitize loans. The

conduit facilities and variable funding programs are generally renewable

annually. Balances securitized under conduit and variable funding 

facilities totaled $3.86 billion and $3.08 billion as of December 31, 

2000 and 1999.

During 2000, the Company completed seven term securitizations

totaling $4.48 billion and one variable funding program in the amount of

$838.3 million.

The Company’s term securitizations are expected to amortize over

the periods indicated below, based on outstanding securitized loans as

of December 31, 2000:

Amount Amortizing
Year (dollars in millions)

2001 $ 1,026

2002 2,139

2003 2,755

2004 2,099

2005 950

The Company believes that it can attract deposits, borrow funds from

other sources, and issue additional asset-backed securities to replace

the funding reflected in the above amortization schedule, but no assur-

ances can be given to that effect.
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The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of deposits at the Company as of December 31, 2000 and 1999.

December 31,

2000 1999

Direct Other Total Direct Other Total
(dollars in thousands) Deposits Deposits Deposits Deposits Deposits Deposits

Three months or less $ 696,492 $ 1,101,455 $ 1,797,947 $ 675,158 $ 271,852 $ 947,010

Over three months through 

twelve months 2,290,179 2,178,797 4,468,976 2,080,048 2,084,568 4,164,616

Over one year through 

five years 1,873,852 3,380,364 5,254,216 1,426,006 2,609,582 4,035,588

Over five years — 662,313 662,313 — 330,000 330,000

Deposits without contractual 

maturity 889,209 40,755 929,964 999,753 61,156 1,060,909

Total deposits $ 5,749,732 $ 7,363,684 $ 13,113,416 $ 5,180,965 $ 5,357,158 $ 10,538,123



The Company, through one of its banking subsidiaries, maintains 

a program for the issuance of senior and subordinated debt. Under this

program, the Company from time to time may issue fixed or variable rate

debt with maturities ranging from seven days to 15 years.

The following table shows the Company’s unsecured funding avail-

ability and outstandings as of December 31, 2000:

December 31, 2000

(dollars or dollar Effective/ Final
equivalents in thousands) Issue Date Availability(1) Outstanding Maturity

Senior and 

subordinated bank 

note program(2)(3) 2/98 $ 2,970,000 $ 621,663 2/13

Short-term credit 

facilities (four 

364-day facilities) Various 250,000 — Various

Short-term U.K. 

credit facility 

(364-day facility)(4) 4/00 37,345 — 4/01

Revolving credit 

facility 1/99 750,000 — 1/03

Providian Financial 

shelf registration 6/98 1,597,500 402,500 8/05

Capital securities(5) 2/97 — 111,057 2/27

(1) Short-term bank notes issued under the bank note program and short-term and long-
term credit facilities are revolving funding sources. Funding availability is subject to market
conditions and contractual provisions.  (2) Includes availability to issue up to $500 million of
subordinated bank notes, none outstanding as of December 31, 2000.  (3) Bank notes 
currently outstanding under the bank note program are medium-term senior bank notes.  
(4) £25 million sterling facility in dollars using exchange rate as of December 31, 2000.  
(5) See Note 11, Long-Term Borrowings and Capital Securities, in Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In August 2000, the Company issued $402.5 million of 3.25% convertible

senior notes due August 15, 2005 with interest payable semiannually on

February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing on February 15,

2001. These notes are convertible, at the option of the holders, at the

conversion rate of 14.4892 shares of the Company’s common stock per

$1,000 of principal, subject to certain adjustments. The Company has

the option to redeem these notes on or after August 20, 2003.

In February 2001, the Company issued $884.0 million principal

amount at maturity of its zero coupon convertible notes due February 15,

2021, with original issue discount accruing at a rate of 4.00% per annum

on a semiannual bond equivalent basis, beginning on February 15, 2001.

The Company will not pay interest on these notes before maturity, except

in limited circumstances under which the Company may elect to pay 

interest at the rate of 4.00% per annum after the occurrence of certain

tax events. The convertible notes are convertible at the option of the

holder, as long as specified conditions are met, into shares of the

Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of 6.2240 shares of com-

mon stock per note, subject to adjustment in certain events. However, the

Company may pay cash rather than deliver shares of its common stock

upon conversion under certain circumstances based on the formula 

provided for in the notes. The Company may redeem all or a portion of

the convertible notes for cash at any time on or after February 15, 2006.

Holders of the notes have the option of requiring the Company to repur-

chase the notes on certain specified dates at the prices provided for 

in the notes.

The Company’s strategy of opportunistic acquisitions may from time

to time require funding. Potential sources of funding for such acquisitions

include the following: cash flow from operations; sale of investment secu-

rities; repurchase agreements; borrowings under revolving credit facili-

ties; asset securitizations; and issuance of publicly offered or privately

placed debt or equity securities. There can be no certainty, however, that

funding for future acquisitions will be available on terms favorable to 

the Company.

The primary source of funds for payment of dividends on the Com-

pany’s common stock is dividends received from its banking subsidiaries.

The amount of dividends that a banking subsidiary may declare without

pre-approval from its primary regulators is generally limited to the sum 

of its net income for the current year and its retained net income for the 

previous two years, less any dividends declared during the related three-

year measurement period. In addition, a bank may not declare dividends

if such declaration would leave the bank inadequately capitalized.

Therefore, the Company’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock

depends on the future net income and capital requirements of its bank-

ing subsidiaries.
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Investments The Company maintains cash reserves to provide

short-term liquidity. The Company also maintains a portfolio of high-

quality investment securities, such as U.S. government and agency 

obligations, mortgage-backed securities, commercial paper, interest-

earning deposits with other banks, federal funds sold, securities pur-

chased under resale agreements, and other cash equivalents. Investment

securities increased to $2.57 billion as of December 31, 2000 from

$581.5 million as of December 31, 1999. Federal funds sold and secu-

rities purchased under resale agreements decreased to $307.2 million

as of December 31, 2000 from $1.30 billion as of December 31, 1999.

At the end of 1999, the Company had built a large short-term liquidity

position in anticipation of possible needs surrounding the Year 2000 date

change; this position was decreased during 2000.

Credit Facilities The Company has additional backup liquidity in 

the form of a $750 million unsecured committed revolving credit facility

from a group of financial institutions, which is scheduled to expire in

January 2003. Pursuant to this credit facility, the Company’s two banking

subsidiaries, Providian National Bank and Providian Bank, as borrowers,

have access to revolving loans, which bear interest determined by a com-

petitive bid process or based on the federal funds rate, the London

Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), or the prime rate, plus a spread. The

Company guarantees the payment, when due, of the borrowers’ obliga-

tions under this credit facility. During 2000, there were no borrowings

under this credit facility. The Company is also a party to four separate

364-day lines of credit totaling $250 million, under which short-term 

borrowings are available for general corporate purposes. The Company

did not borrow funds under these 364-day lines of credit during 2000.

The United Kingdom branch of Providian National Bank is a party

to a sterling denominated 364-day line of credit in the amount of £25 mil-

lion ($37.3 million equivalent based on the exchange rate at Decem-

ber 31, 2000), under which short-term borrowings are available for 

general corporate purposes. The Company guarantees the payment,

when due, of the borrower’s obligations under the sterling facility.

The Company follows a contingency funding plan that defines tests

for management to monitor the Company’s liquidity position and pre-

scribes management’s actions in response to various circumstances.

Capital Adequacy

Each of the Company’s banking subsidiaries is subject to capital ade-

quacy guidelines as defined by its primary federal regulator. Core capi-

tal (Tier 1) consists principally of shareholders’ equity less goodwill. Total

risk-based capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) includes a portion of the reserve for

credit losses and other capital components. Based on these classifica-

tions of capital, the capital adequacy regulations establish three capital

adequacy ratios that are used to measure whether a financial institution

is “well capitalized” or “adequately capitalized” as set forth below:

Well Adequately
Capitalized Capitalized

Capital Ratio Calculation Ratios Ratios

Total risk-based (Tier 1 + Tier 2)/

Total risk-based assets ≥10% ≥8%<10%

Tier 1 Tier 1/Total risk-based 

assets ≥ 6% ≥4%< 6%

Leverage Tier 1/Adjusted 

average assets ≥ 5% ≥4%< 5%

At December 31, 2000, each of the Company’s banking subsidiaries

was “well capitalized” in all regulatory capital ratio categories, as set

forth below:

Providian National Providian
Capital Ratio Bank Bank

Total risk-based 10.58% 14.94%

Tier 1 9.22% 13.64%

Leverage 11.90% 6.34%

The capital requirements and classifications of the Company’s banking

subsidiaries are also subject to qualitative judgments by their regulators

with respect to components, risk weighting, and other factors. In accor-

dance with the banking regulators’ risk-based capital standards, risk-

based capital must be maintained for assets transferred with recourse in

an amount no greater than the maximum amount of recourse for which

a regulated entity is contractually liable under the recourse agreement.

This rule, known as the low-level recourse rule, applies to transactions 
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accounted for as sales under GAAP in which a bank contractually limits

its risk of loss or recourse exposure to less than the full effective mini-

mum risk-based capital requirement for the assets transferred. Low-level

recourse transactions arise when a bank securitizes assets and uses

contractual cash flows, retained subordinated interests, or other assets

as credit enhancements. The Company’s banking subsidiaries are

required to hold risk-based capital equivalent to the maximum recourse

exposure on the assets transferred, net of related income taxes where

appropriate, not to exceed the amount of risk-based capital that would

be required if the low-level recourse rule did not apply.

Asset/Liability Risk Management

The composition of the Company’s consolidated statements of financial

condition consists primarily of investments in interest-earning assets

(loans receivable and investment securities) that are primarily funded by

interest-bearing liabilities (deposits and borrowings). As a result, the

Company’s earnings are subject to risk resulting from interest rate fluc-

tuations to the extent that there is a difference between the amount of

interest-earning assets and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities that

mature, reprice, prepay, or withdraw in a specific period.

The Company’s receivables generally have a fixed yield or float at

a spread above the prime rate. While the Company’s fixed rate credit

card receivables have no stated maturity or repricing period, the Com-

pany generally may adjust the rate charged after providing notice to 

the customer in accordance with applicable laws. Interest rates on the

Company’s liabilities are generally indexed to LIBOR or bear a fixed 

rate until maturity. This asset/liability structure exposes the Company 

to two types of interest rate risk: (a) repricing risk, which results from

differences between the timing of rate changes and the timing of cash

flows; and (b) basis risk, which arises from changing spread relation-

ships between yield curves and indexes.

The principal objective of the Company’s asset/liability risk man-

agement activities is to monitor and control the Company’s exposure 

to adverse effects resulting from movements of interest rates over time.

The Company measures and manages interest rate risk individually for

each banking subsidiary and on a consolidated basis, including both

reported and managed assets and liabilities in its measurement and man-

agement. To measure exposure to interest rate changes, the Company

uses net interest income (NII) and market value of portfolio equity (MVPE)

simulation analysis.

The following table presents the estimated effects of positive and

negative parallel shifts in interest rates as calculated at December 31,

2000 and takes into consideration the Company’s current hedging activity:

Percentage Change in(1)

Change in Interest Rates (in basis points) NII(2) MVPE(3)

+200 (2.3)% (11.0)%

Flat 0% 0%

–200 2.3% 12.1%

(1) The information shown is presented on a consolidated, managed asset/liability basis, giv-
ing effect to securitizations and related funding.  (2) The percentage change in this column
represents the NII for twelve months in a stable interest rate environment versus the NII 
in the specified rate scenarios.  (3) The percentage change in this column represents 
the MVPE in a stable interest rate environment versus the MVPE in the specified rate 
scenarios. MVPE is defined as the present value of expected net cash flows from existing
assets, minus the present value of expected net cash flows from existing liabilities, plus the
present value of expected net cash flows from existing off-balance sheet transactions.

As part of its interest rate risk measurement process, the Company must

estimate how its customers and competitors will respond to changes in

market interest rates. In addition, the repricing of certain categories of

assets and liabilities is subject to competitive and other pressures

beyond the Company’s control. As a result, certain assets and liabilities

assumed to mature or otherwise reprice within a certain period may in

fact mature or reprice at different times and at different volumes. There-

fore, the table above should be viewed as the Company’s estimate of 

the general effect of broad and sustained interest rate movements on the

Company’s net income and portfolio value.

The Company generally seeks to mitigate earnings volatility asso-

ciated with interest rate movement by matching the repricing character-

istics of reported and managed assets and liabilities. When matching 

the repricing characteristics of reported and managed assets and liabil-

ities is not possible or efficient, the Company uses derivative financial

instruments, including interest rate swap and cap agreements, to reduce

interest rate risk.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk refers to the potential changes

in current and future earnings or capital arising from movements in for-

eign exchange rates. The Company’s foreign currency exchange rate

risk is primarily limited to the unhedged portion of the Company’s net

investment in its foreign subsidiaries and branches. The Company uses

foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign

currency exchange rate risk.
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As of December 31, 2000, the Company’s foreign currency expo-

sure included British pounds sterling and Argentine pesos, and the risk

was substantially hedged. A sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical

10% movement in foreign exchange rates applied to the Company’s

hedging contracts and underlying balances being hedged indicated that

this market movement would not have a material effect on the Company’s

business, operating results, or financial condition. Actual gains or losses

in the future may differ materially from this analysis, depending on the

growth of the Company’s foreign operations and the extent of foreign

currency exchange rate movements. As the Company’s foreign opera-

tions grow, the Company’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is also

likely to grow.

The Company does not trade or invest in derivatives or use deriva-

tives to speculate on interest rates. The following table presents the

notional amounts of interest rate swap and cap agreements purchased

for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Interest Rate 

Swap Agreements

Beginning balance $ 1,050,476 $ 635,500 $ 955,000

Additions 335,000 500,476 667,000

Maturities 10,000 85,500 987,000

Ending balance $ 1,375,476 $ 1,050,476 $ 635,000

Interest Rate

Cap Agreements

Beginning balance $ 644,878 $ 670,960 $ 922,000

Additions 509,333 255,750 659,000

Maturities 515,586 281,832 910,000

Ending balance $ 638,625 $ 644,878 $ 671,000

Notional amounts of interest rate swaps outstanding have increased to

offset, in part, the growth of fixed rate deposits. As market conditions or

the Company’s asset/liability mix change, the Company may increase 

or decrease the notional amount of interest rate swaps and caps out-

standing in order to manage the Company’s interest rate risk profile.

The Company manages credit risk arising from derivative transac-

tions through an ongoing credit review, approval, and monitoring process.

“Credit risk” for these derivative transactions is defined as the risk that

a loss will occur as the result of a derivative counterparty defaulting on

a contract when the contract is in a favorable economic position to the

Company. The Company may enter into master netting, market settle-

ment, or collateralization agreements with derivative counterparties to

reduce the credit exposure arising from its hedging transactions.
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December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 446,705 $ 182,915

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 307,206 1,298,000

Investment securities:

Available-for-sale (at market value, amortized cost of $1,849,619 and $458,916 

at December 31, 2000 and 1999) 1,885,474 455,238

Held-to-maturity (market value of $686,721 and $125,697 at December 31, 2000 and 1999) 686,214 126,258

Loans receivable, less allowance for credit losses of $1,445,638 and $1,028,377 

at December 31, 2000 and 1999 12,324,519 10,545,173

Premises and equipment, net 193,327 149,194

Interest receivable 158,633 108,087

Due from securitizations 971,939 614,217

Deferred taxes 679,782 571,040

Other assets 401,514 290,755

Total assets $ 18,055,313 $ 14,340,877

Liabilities

Deposits:

Non interest-bearing $ 79,824 $ 63,890

Interest-bearing 13,033,592 10,474,233

13,113,416 10,538,123

Short-term borrowings 18,744 126,289

Long-term borrowings 1,024,163 958,056

Deferred fee revenue 661,646 578,607

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,094,104 647,326

Total liabilities 15,912,073 12,848,401

Company obligated mandatorily redeemable capital securities of subsidiary trust holding 

solely junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures of the Company (capital securities) 111,057 160,000

Shareholders’ Equity

Common stock, par value $0.01 per share (authorized: 800,000,000 shares; issued: 

December 31, 2000—286,215,960 shares; December 31, 1999—286,239,960 shares) 2,862 954

Retained earnings 2,014,205 1,394,293

Cumulative other comprehensive income 21,092 (2,161)

Common stock held in treasury—at cost (December 31, 2000—304,530 shares; 

December 31, 1999—2,107,146 shares) (5,976) (60,610)

Total shareholders’ equity 2,032,183 1,332,476

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 18,055,313 $ 14,340,877

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2000 1999 1998

Interest Income

Loans $ 2,468,595 $ 1,559,285 $ 807,825

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 85,899 34,334 14,072

Other 145,453 30,657 20,682

Total interest income 2,699,947 1,624,276 842,579

Interest Expense

Deposits 812,986 356,736 204,335

Borrowings 62,188 92,334 42,931

Total interest expense 875,174 449,070 247,266

Net interest income 1,824,773 1,175,206 595,313

Provision for credit losses 1,515,350 1,099,131 545,929

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 309,423 76,075 49,384

Non-Interest Income

Servicing and securitizations 855,338 620,223 559,305

Credit product fee income 2,199,353 1,754,068 703,498

Other 193,611 38,185 3,376

3,248,302 2,412,476 1,266,179

Non-Interest Expense

Salaries and employee benefits 705,228 494,089 265,411

Solicitation and advertising 550,390 428,617 196,528

Occupancy, furniture, and equipment 140,470 84,157 49,908

Data processing and communication 181,841 125,219 74,603

Other 893,574 439,044 238,550

2,471,503 1,571,126 825,000

Income before income taxes 1,086,222 917,425 490,563

Income tax expense 434,460 367,153 194,117

Net Income $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Earnings per common share—basic $ 2.29 $ 1.95 $ 1.04

Earnings per common share—assuming dilution $ 2.23 $ 1.89 $ 1.02

Cash dividends paid per common share $ 0.1050 $ 0.1000 $ 0.0750

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic (000) 284,174 282,742 283,744

Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming dilution (000) 294,042 291,094 290,368

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Income
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
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Cumulative Common
Additional Other Stock

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Held in
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) Stock Capital Earnings Income Treasury Total

Balance at December 31, 1997 $ 954 $ 4,217 $ 599,856 $ — $ (9,913) $ 595,114

Comprehensive income:

Net Income 296,446 296,446

Other comprehensive income, net of 

income tax:

Unrealized loss on securities net of 

income tax benefit of $215 (320) (320)

Comprehensive income 296,126

Cash dividend: Common—$0.075 per share (21,358) (21,358)

Stock dividend: Dividend rate of 50% par $0.01 473 (473) —

Purchase of 4,814,166 common shares 

for treasury 16,066 (114,037) (97,971)

Exercise of stock options and other awards (24,974) (8,466) 49,904 16,464

Issuance of restricted and unrestricted stock 

less forfeited shares 1,331 10,594 11,925

Deferred compensation related to grant of 

restricted and unrestricted stock less 

amortization of $4,415 (7,509) (7,509)

Put warrant premium 1,325 1,325

Net tax effect from employee stock plans 9,071 9,071

Balance at December 31, 1998 $ 954 $ — $ 866,005 $ (320) $ (63,452) $ 803,187

Comprehensive income:

Net Income 550,272 550,272

Other comprehensive income, net of 

income tax:

Unrealized loss on securities net of 

income tax benefit of $1,256 (1,887) (1,887)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 

net of income tax expense of $30 46 46

Other comprehensive income (1,841)

Comprehensive income 548,431

Cash dividend: Common—$0.10 per share (28,374) (28,374)

Purchase of 1,915,846 common shares 

for treasury 25,723 (99,727) (74,004)

Exercise of stock options and other awards (72,785) 6,390 93,826 27,431

Issuance of restricted and unrestricted stock 

less forfeited shares (434) 8,743 8,309

Deferred compensation related to grant of 

restricted and unrestricted stock less 

amortization of $7,738 (571) (571)

Net tax effect from employee stock plans 48,067 48,067

Balance at December 31, 1999 $ 954 $ — $ 1,394,293 $ (2,161) $ (60,610) $ 1,332,476

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

88



Cumulative Common
Additional Other Stock

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Held in
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) Stock Capital Earnings Income Treasury Total

Balance at December 31, 1999 $ 954 $ — $ 1,394,293 $ (2,161) $ (60,610) $ 1,332,476

Comprehensive income:

Net Income 651,762 651,762

Other comprehensive income, net of 

income tax:

Unrealized gain on securities net of 

income tax expense of $15,813 23,720 23,720

Foreign currency translation adjustments 

net of income tax benefit of $251 (467) (467)

Other comprehensive income 23,253

Comprehensive income 675,015

Cash dividend: Common—$0.105 per share (29,932) (29,932)

Stock dividend: Dividend rate of 

100% par $0.01 1,431 (1,431) —

Adjustment for stock dividend 477 (473) (4) —

Purchase of 1,437,782 common shares 

for treasury 25,120 (65,551) (40,431)

Exercise of stock options and other awards (52,473) (483) 92,909 39,953

Issuance of restricted and unrestricted stock 

less forfeited shares (8,665) 27,276 18,611

Deferred compensation related to grant of 

restricted and unrestricted stock less 

amortization of $13,518 (5,093) (5,093)

Net tax effect from employee stock plans 41,584 41,584

Balance at December 31, 2000 $ 2,862 $ — $ 2,014,205 $ 21,092 $ (5,976) $ 2,032,183

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Operating Activities

Net Income $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for credit losses 1,515,350 1,099,131 545,929

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 52,243 34,659 19,435

Amortization of net loan acquisition costs 34,883 63,016 44,852

Amortization of deferred compensation related to restricted and unrestricted stock 13,518 7,738 4,415

Increase in deferred fee revenue 83,039 262,899 254,668

Increase in deferred income tax benefit (124,304) (263,584) (239,507)

Increase in interest receivable (50,546) (56,286) (21,609)

Gain from sale of home loans (64,671) — —

Net increase in other assets (146,130) (207,512) (87,700)

Net increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 488,362 287,628 230,518

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,453,506 1,777,961 1,047,447

Investing Activities

Net (increase) decrease in held-to-maturity investments (559,956) 99,882 (129,862)

Net cash used for loan originations and principal collections on loans receivable (8,701,422) (8,071,051) (1,962,496)

Net increase in securitized loans 3,862,578 1,835,739 1,633,766

Net proceeds from sale of home loans 1,609,313 — —

Portfolio acquisitions — (127,119) (2,233,944)

(Increase) decrease in due from securitizations (357,722) (159,843) 68,013

Purchases of available-for-sale investment securities (1,577,288) (376,790) (148,907)

Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale investment securities 186,585 125,948 15,137

Decrease (increase) in federal funds sold and securities purchased under 

resale agreements 990,794 (1,000,131) (182,909)

Net purchases of premises and equipment (97,100) (100,995) (40,668)

Net cash used by investing activities (4,644,218) (7,774,360) (2,981,870)

Financing Activities

Net increase in deposits 2,575,293 5,865,825 1,459,532

Proceeds from issuance of term federal funds 1,355,000 1,873,000 1,122,500

Repayment of term federal funds (1,440,093) (2,245,000) (800,000)

(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings (22,452) 25,789 (82,000)

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 402,500 629,870 399,757

Repayment of long-term borrowings (336,393) (71,571) —

Repurchase of capital securities (48,943) — —

Purchase of treasury stock (40,431) (74,004) (97,971)

Put warrant premium — — 1,325

Dividends paid (29,932) (28,374) (21,358)

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 39,953 27,431 16,464

Net cash provided by financing activities 2,454,502 6,002,966 1,998,249

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 263,790 6,567 63,826

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 182,915 176,348 112,522

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 446,705 $ 182,915 $ 176,348

Supplemental Disclosures

Interest expense paid $ 806,884 $ 390,534 $ 228,945

Income taxes paid $ 539,076 $ 617,929 $ 310,677

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

90



Note 1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Providian Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is a Delaware corpo-

ration, with executive offices located in San Francisco, California. Through

its subsidiaries, the Company provides consumer lending and deposit

products within the United States and the United Kingdom, and offers

credit cards in Argentina. The Company’s principal wholly owned sub-

sidiaries are Providian National Bank (“PNB”) and Providian Bank (“PB”).

The Company markets consumer loans and deposits using distribution

channels such as mail, telephone, television, and the Internet.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of Decem-

ber 31, 2000 and 1999 and for the years ended December 31, 2000,

1999, and 1998 have been prepared in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) that require

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported

amounts. These estimates are based on information available as of the

date of the consolidated financial statements. Therefore, actual results

could differ from those estimates. All significant intercompany balances

and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior year

amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2000 presentation.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include

cash on hand and short-term investments convertible into cash upon

demand. The Company is required to maintain reserves with the Federal

Reserve Bank based on a percentage of its deposit liabilities.

Investment Securities Investment securities available-for-sale con-

sist primarily of mortgage-backed securities and are stated at fair value,

with unrealized gains and losses, net of related income taxes, reported

as a component of “cumulative other comprehensive income” in the

Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition. Held-to-

maturity investment securities are securities that the Company has the

positive intent and ability to hold to maturity and are reported at amor-

tized cost. The Company does not trade investment securities. Realized

gains and losses and other than temporary impairments related to

investment securities are determined by using specific identification and

are reported in “other non-interest income” in the Company’s consoli-

dated statements of income.

Securitizations The Company securitizes loans and records such

securitizations as sales. The Company accounts for securitization trans-

actions in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(“SFAS”) No. 125, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial

Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” When the Company sells

receivables through a securitization, it retains interest-only strips, ser-

vicing rights, and in some cases a cash reserve account or one or more 

subordinated classes, all of which are retained interests in the securitized

receivables. The gain or loss on the sale of receivables depends in part

on the previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the

transfer, and is allocated between the assets sold and the retained inter-

ests based on their relative fair value at the date of transfer. To obtain fair

values, quoted market prices are used if available. However, quotes are

generally not available for retained interests, so the Company generally

estimates fair value based on the present value of future expected cash

flows estimated using management’s best estimates of the key assump-

tions—credit losses, prepayment speeds, forward yield curves, and 

discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. The Company rec-

ognizes gains or losses at the time it enters into a securitization and at

the time of each monthly subsequent transfer of loans. Retained inter-

ests are maintained at fair value. Gains on securitization loan sales and

changes in fair value of retained interests are included in “servicing and

securitizations” in the Company’s consolidated statements of income and

the related assets are included as a component of “due from securitiza-

tions” in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition.

Interest Income on Loans Interest income on loans is recognized

based upon the principal amount outstanding in accordance with the

terms of the applicable account agreement until the outstanding balance

is paid or charged off. The accrued interest portion of charged-off loan

balances is deducted from current period interest income and the prin-

cipal amount is charged off against the allowance for credit losses.

Allowance for Credit Losses The allowance for credit losses is

maintained at a level that, in management’s judgment, is adequate to pro-

vide for estimated probable net credit losses from known and inherent

risks in the Company’s loan portfolios. As part of the quantitative evalu-

ation of the allowance for credit losses, the Company segregates loans

by portfolio type. These include portfolios of various types of credit card

products and acquired loan portfolios. The quantitative factors the Com-

pany uses to establish portfolio-level reserves are historical delinquen-

cies, historical credit loss rates, level of security (if applicable), customer

characteristics, and other factors. Loan portfolios are grouped into

homogeneous pools, and certain qualitative factors consistent with appli-

cable bank regulatory guidelines are applied to each pool and portfolio

to further evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for that pool or port-

folio. These qualitative factors include general economic conditions,

trends in loan portfolio volume and seasoning, geographic concentra-

tions, and recent modifications to loan review and underwriting proce-

dures. The Company compares actual credit loss performance against

estimated credit losses, and may modify its loan loss allowance evalua-

tion model accordingly. The Company’s policy is generally to charge off

loan balances no later than 180 days after they become contractually

past due.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

December 31, 2000 and 1999
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Premises and Equipment Premises and equipment are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and

amortization expenses are computed using the straight-line method over

the estimated useful life of the related assets.

Credit Product Fee Income Credit product fee income includes

interchange income, annual membership income, cash advance and pro-

cessing fees, and other revenue arising primarily from the cross-market-

ing of cardholder service products. In addition, credit product fee income

includes loan performance fees, such as late, overlimit, and returned

check charges. Credit product fee income earned from securitized loans

is not included in credit product fee income but is instead recorded as

part of “servicing and securitizations” in the Company’s consolidated

statements of income.

Loan performance fees, interchange income, and cash advance

fees are recognized monthly, as earned. Annual membership fees and

cardholder service product revenue are recorded, net of estimated can-

cellations, in the month subsequent to customer billing and amortized into

revenue on a straight-line basis over the privilege period, generally twelve

months. The allowance for cancellations is established based on the

Company’s most recent actual cancellation experience and is updated

regularly. A customer may cancel his or her membership for a complete

refund during an initial money-back guarantee period. After such initial

period, customers who cancel their membership may be eligible for a full

or partial refund under the Company’s customer satisfaction program.

During 2000, the Company accelerated the recognition of the estimated

uncollectible portion of accrued fees on certain delinquent accounts,

which were previously reversed against fee revenue upon charge-off 

of the related accounts. On an ongoing basis, the Company continues

to reverse the estimated uncollectible portion of accrued fees on such

delinquent accounts.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions The Company has

operations in the United Kingdom and Argentina. These operations have

generated foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities, which 

are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect as of the

balance sheet date. Results of operations are translated using actual

exchange rates for the period in which the transaction occurred. The

gains or losses net of hedging results are reported as a component of

“cumulative other comprehensive income” in the Company’s consoli-

dated statements of financial condition, net of related income taxes.

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company uses a combination

of interest rate swap and cap agreements to manage interest rate risk

related to loans, deposits, and loan servicing income relating to securi-

tized loans.

When interest rate swap and cap agreements are used for asset 

or liability management purposes, interest rate differentials to be paid or

received are accrued and recognized as an adjustment to the related 

interest income or interest expense. Interest rate cap premiums paid are 

amortized to interest expense ratably during the life of the agreement.

When interest rate swap and cap agreements are used to hedge

the servicing income received from loan securitizations, interest rate 

differentials to be paid or received are accrued and recognized as an

adjustment to loan servicing income. Interest rate cap premiums paid 

are amortized to loan servicing income ratably during the life of the

agreement. In the event that additional loans are securitized or repricing

occurs that impacts the Company’s hedging position, any gain or loss

upon termination of the related swap or cap agreements is deferred 

and amortized to loan servicing income over the remaining term of the

related securitization.

For an interest rate swap or cap agreement to qualify for hedge

accounting treatment, the following conditions must be met: the under-

lying asset or liability being hedged by the instrument exposes the

Company to interest rate risk; the instrument reduces the Company’s

sensitivity to interest rate risk; and the instrument is designated and

deemed effective in hedging the Company’s exposure to interest rate

risk. All of the Company’s interest rate swap and cap agreements des-

ignated as hedging instruments qualify for hedge accounting treatment.

The Company does not hold or issue interest rate swap and cap agree-

ments for trading purposes.

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts primarily to

hedge the Company’s net investment in its foreign subsidiaries and

branches. Forward contracts are commitments to buy or sell foreign cur-

rency at a future date for a contracted rate. Any premium or discount

paid or received is amortized over the life of the contract to “cumulative

other comprehensive income” in the Company’s consolidated statements

of financial condition. Gains or losses on foreign exchange forward 

contracts that are designated and deemed effective as a hedge of the

Company’s net investment in its foreign subsidiaries or branches are

deferred and reported as an offset to translation gains or losses in

“cumulative other comprehensive income” in the Company’s consoli-

dated statements of financial condition. Contracts are deemed effective

hedges if they reduce the Company’s sensitivity to foreign exchange cur-

rency risk. The Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts have all

been designated and deemed effective as foreign currency hedges. The

Company does not hold or issue foreign exchange forward contracts for

trading purposes.
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In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities,” and its amendments, SFAS No. 137 and No. 138, in June 1999

and June 2000, respectively. SFAS No. 133, as amended, requires the

Company to recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value.

Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value through

income. If a derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge,

changes in the fair value of the derivative are either offset against the

change in fair value of assets, liabilities, or firm commitments through

earnings or recognized in cumulative other comprehensive income until

the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a

derivative’s change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earn-

ings. The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended on January 1,

2001, and its adoption resulted in the cumulative effect of an account-

ing change of $1.8 million being recognized as income in the Company’s

consolidated statements of income and an unrealized gain of $0.3 mil-

lion in “cumulative other comprehensive income” in the Company’s 

consolidated statements of financial condition.

Solicitation and Advertising Advertising costs and the majority of

solicitation expenses are expensed as incurred. The Company capital-

izes only the direct nonsolicitation costs (loan origination costs) associ-

ated with successful account acquisition efforts, after offsetting up-front

processing fees. Capitalized loan origination costs are amortized on a

straight-line basis over the privilege period (currently one year). Amorti-

zation of deferred loan origination costs is accelerated when the asso-

ciated assets are securitized or sold. Net deferred loan origination costs,

which are included in other assets, were $31.9 million and $27.4 million

at December 31, 2000 and 1999.

Income Taxes Income taxes are accounted for using the liability

method. Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized based on differences between financial reporting and tax

bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted 

tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are settled

or realized.

Stock-Based Employee Compensation The Company has elected

to account for its stock-based compensation plans in accordance 

with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting 

for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, as SFAS 

No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” permits. Accord-

ingly, because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock

options is the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date of

grant, the Company recognizes no compensation expense at the time 

of the grant. In addition, the Company does not recognize compensa-

tion expense for its employee stock purchase plan since it qualifies as a

non-compensatory plan under APB Opinion No. 25. The Company, as

required, follows the pro forma net income, pro forma earnings per

share, and stock-based compensation plan disclosure requirements set

forth in SFAS No. 123.

Comprehensive Income The Company accounts for comprehen-

sive income in accordance with SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehen-

sive Income.” SFAS No. 130 establishes standards for the reporting and

presentation of comprehensive income and its components (revenues,

expenses, gains, and losses) in the financial statements. The Company

presents comprehensive income in its consolidated statements of

changes in shareholders’ equity, net of related income taxes.

Note 3. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued

SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial

Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities—a replacement of FASB State-

ment No. 125.” SFAS No. 140 revises the standards for accounting for

securitizations and other transfers of financial assets and requires cer-

tain additional disclosures. SFAS No. 140 will be effective for all trans-

fers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities

occurring after March 31, 2001. The SFAS No. 140 disclosure require-

ments, which have been adopted by the Company in these financial

statements, are required for financial statements for fiscal years ending

after December 15, 2000. The Company intends to adopt the remainder

of SFAS No.140 on the required effective date. Implementation of SFAS

No. 140 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s 

consolidated financial statements.
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During the year ended December 31, 2000, mortgage-backed securities

with an amortized cost of $19.2 million were sold at a loss of $0.4 mil-

lion. Realized gains and losses were calculated using the specific iden-

tification method. No investment securities were pledged by the Company

at December 31, 2000 and 1999.
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Note 4. Investment Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments and the related unrealized holding gains and losses

were as follows:

December 31,

2000 1999

Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

Investment Securities 

Available-for-Sale

United States Treasury and 

federal agency bonds $ 224,633 $ 4,172 $ — $ 228,805 $ 137,384 $ — $ 1,171 $ 136,213

Mortgage-backed securities 1,611,916 34,137 2,454 1,643,599 314,225 549 3,056 311,718

Equity securities and other 13,070 — — 13,070 7,307 — — 7,307

Total securities 

available-for-sale $ 1,849,619 $ 38,309 $ 2,454 $ 1,885,474 $ 458,916 $ 549 $ 4,227 $ 455,238

Investment Securities 

Held-to-Maturity

United States Treasury and 

federal agency bonds $ 99,360 $ 787 $ 63 $ 100,084 $ 125,728 $ 160 $ 721 $ 125,167

Commercial paper 586,198 — 217 585,981 — — — —

Tax-exempt and other 

securities 656 — — 656 530 — — 530

Total securities 

held-to-maturity $ 686,214 $ 787 $ 280 $ 686,721 $ 126,258 $ 160 $ 721 $ 125,697



Note 5. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

The following is a summary of the Company’s loans receivable:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Credit cards $ 13,734,789 $ 10,075,185

Home loans 13,877 1,484,391

Other 21,491 13,974

Allowance for credit losses (1,445,638) (1,028,377)

$ 12,324,519 $ 10,545,173

The Company originates credit card loans in the United States and 

the United Kingdom, and in 2000 began offering credit card loans in

Argentina. The Company has credit risk on unsecured loans to the extent

that borrowers fail to repay amounts owed and such amounts are not

recovered through collection procedures. The Company has credit risk

on secured credit cards, which require collateral in the form of a deposit,

to the extent that the borrower defaults and the outstanding loan balance

exceeds the deposit balance. The Company has no significant regional

domestic or foreign concentrations of credit risk.

The activity in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended

December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998 is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Balance at 

beginning of year $ 1,028,377 $ 451,245 $ 145,312

Provision for 

credit losses 1,515,350 1,099,131 545,929

Reserves acquired/

other (22,617) 14,303 116,144

Foreign currency 

translation (144) (3) —

Credit losses (1,188,033) (609,947) (389,587)

Recoveries 112,705 73,648 33,447

Balance at 

end of year $ 1,445,638 $ 1,028,377 $ 451,245
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value as of December 31, 2000 of the Company’s available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities by esti-

mated maturity dates are presented in the following table:

December 31, 2000

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity

(dollars in thousands) Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ 24,860 $ 24,992 $ 620,671 $ 620,472

Due after one year through five years 202,273 206,313 65,543 66,249

Due after five years through ten years — — — —

Due after ten years — — — —

Subtotal 227,133 231,305 686,214 686,721

Mortgage-backed securities 1,611,916 1,643,599 — —

Equity securities 10,570 10,570 — —

Total securities $ 1,849,619 $ 1,885,474 $ 686,214 $ 686,721



Note 6. Securitization or Sale of Receivables

The Company periodically securitizes certain of its loans receivable, issu-

ing both publicly offered and privately placed asset-backed securities.

During 2000, 1999, and 1998, the Company securitized $5.32 billion,

$2.46 billion, and $1.75 billion of loans receivable. The total amount of

securitized loans as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 was $13.35 bil-

lion and $9.42 billion.

During the initial period of a securitization (revolving period), the

Company generally retains principal collections in exchange for the trans-

fer of additional loans receivable into the securitized pool of assets.

During the amortization or accumulation period of a securitization, the

investors’ share of principal collections (in certain cases, up to a maxi-

mum specified amount each month) is either distributed each month to

the investors or held in an account for accumulation and later distribu-

tion to the investors.

Due from securitizations was $971.9 million as of December 31,

2000, and $614.2 million as of December 31, 1999. The primary com-

ponents of due from securitizations, as of December 31, 2000 and 

1999, were interest-only strips receivable, which were $123.0 million

and $101.9 million, and retained subordinated interests, which were 

$550.9 million and $178.4 million, respectively.

Interest-only strips receivable represent the present value of the

projected excess servicing income of the securitized loans. During secu-

ritization revolving periods, additional interest-only strip receivable assets

are recognized each month as additional receivables are transferred 

to investors.

Retained subordinated interests represent ownership interests in

securitized receivables that are held by the Company and are subordi-

nate to more senior interests held by investors. The retained interests

have been recorded at fair value based upon an allocation of sold and

retained interests at the time of transfer and upon their subordinate 

status. Their value is subject to credit, prepayment, and interest rate

risks on the transferred financial assets.

During 2000 and 1999, the Company sold credit card loans receiv-

able in securitization transactions. In all those securitizations, the Com-

pany retained servicing responsibilities and subordinated interests. The

Company receives annual servicing fees approximating 2.83% of the out-

standing balance and rights to future cash flows arising after the investors

in the securitization trust have received the return for which they con-

tracted. The investors and the securitization trustee or agent generally

have no recourse to the Company’s other assets for failure of account-

holders to pay when due. The Company recognized pre-tax gains of

$24.5 million and $2.9 million on securitizations in 2000 and 1999.

Key economic assumptions used in measuring the retained interests

for new securitizations at the date of transfer are shown below:

Year ended December 31,

(rate per annum) 2000 1999

Weighted average life (in years)(1) 0.8 0.7

Expected net credit losses 9.2% 9.3%

Residual cash flow discount rate(2) 12.0–15.0% 12.0–15.0%

Average variable returns to transferees(3) 0.39% 0.35%

(1) The weighted average life is calculated by multiplying the principal collections expected
in each future period by the number of periods until that future period, summing those prod-
ucts, and dividing by the initial principal balance.  (2) Discount rate assumptions vary based
on the relative risk of the securitized cash flows.  (3) Average variable returns are quoted
as spread over the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR).

At December 31, 2000, key economic assumptions used in valuing

retained interests and the hypothetical sensitivity of the current fair value

of residual cash flows to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in

those assumptions are as follows:

Expected Residual
Monthly Annual Annual

Prepayment Credit Discount
(dollars in millions) Rate(1) Losses Rate(2)

Current assumptions 9.3% 8.5% 12.0–15.0%

Impact on fair value of 

10% adverse change(3) $ 11.9 $ 27.5 $ 0.6

20% adverse change(3) $ 21.8 $ 55.0 $ 1.1

(1) The monthly prepayment rate relates to the securitized portfolio weighted average life of
0.9 years.  (2) Discount rate assumptions vary based on the relative risk of the securitized
cash flows.  (3) These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the
figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10% variation in assumptions generally
cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change
in fair value may not be linear. Also, in this table, the effect of a variation in a particular
assumption on the fair value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other
assumption; in reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another (for example,
increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit
losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

The table below summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid

in respect of securitizations:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in millions) 2000 1999

Proceeds from new securitizations $ 4,879 $ 2,389

Proceeds from collections reinvested 

in revolving period securitizations 8,727 5,808

Servicing fees received 272 140

Cash flows received on 

retained interests 598 554
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Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Loan commitments are agreements to lend to customers subject to the

customers’ compliance with the Company’s account agreements. The

Company can reduce or terminate credit card commitments by provid-

ing customers the required prior notice, which is generally no more than

30 days, or without notice if permitted by law. The unfunded commit-

ments represent the total unused portion of the lines of credit available

to customers. As a group, customers have not borrowed the entire 

line of credit available to them at any one time, nor does the Company

anticipate that this would occur in the future. Therefore, the total com-

mitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The Company’s total unfunded commitments are as follows:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Credit card loans $ 21,906,329 $ 19,161,840

Home loans — 203,662

Other 295 467

$ 21,906,624 $ 19,365,969

In June 2000, the Company reached settlements with the Office of 

the Comptroller of the Currency, the San Francisco District Attorney, the

California Attorney General, and the Connecticut Attorney General with

respect to the investigation of certain of its business practices. In

December 2000, the Company announced that it had reached an agree-

ment to resolve a number of class action lawsuits, primarily involving the

marketing of its cardholder service products, that had been consolidated

in the California Superior Court in San Francisco and the Federal District

Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. Court approval of the

class action settlements is required. In connection with the settlements,

the Company agreed to make certain business practice changes and to

pay restitution to affected customers. The Company recorded net pre-

tax charges of $272.6 million and $36.7 million to non-interest expense

during the second and fourth quarters of 2000, respectively, relating to

the settlements.
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The following table presents quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses, and components of securitized loans receivable and other

assets managed with them:

December 31, Year ended December 31,

2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999

Total Principal Delinquent Loans 
(dollars in millions) Amount of Loans 30 Days or More Past Due(1) Average Balances Net Credit Losses

Total loans managed or 

securitized(2) $ 27,123 $ 21,026 $ 2,041 $ 1,190 $ 23,173 $ 16,482 $ 1,786 $ 1,144

Less

Loans securitized(3) 13,353 9,416 10,250 8,082

Loans held for sale or 

securitization — — 33 —

Loans reported $ 13,770 $ 11,610 $ 12,890 $ 8,400

(1) Loans 30 days or more past due are based on end of period total loans.  (2) Owned and securitized loans include credit card loans and other loans, as applicable, in which the 
transferor retains a subordinate interest or retains any risk of loss (for example, 10% recourse).  (3) Represents the principal amount of the loans. Interest-only strips and servicing rights
(or other retained interests) held for securitized loans are excluded from this table because they are recognized separately.



Several class actions that were not consolidated with the class

actions that were the subject of the settlements are pending in vari-

ous state courts. Another class action pending in federal court (In re

Providian Securities Litigation) alleges, in general, that the Company and

certain of its officers made false and misleading statements concerning

its future prospects and financial results in violation of the federal secu-

rities laws. In addition, several shareholder derivative actions seek

redress against members of the Company’s Board of Directors and cer-

tain executive officers for alleged breach of their fiduciary duties and 

corporate waste arising out of alleged unfair business practices. An

informed assessment of the ultimate outcome or potential liability asso-

ciated with the remaining pending lawsuits and other potential claims

that could arise out of the Company’s business practices is not feasible

at this time. Due to the uncertainties of litigation, there can be no assur-

ance that the Company will prevail on all the claims made against it in

the pending lawsuits or that similar or other proceedings will not be

brought. However, management believes that the Company has sub-

stantive defenses and intends to defend the actions vigorously. For more

detailed information on legal proceedings affecting the Company, see

“Legal Proceedings” in Item 3 of Part I of the Company’s 2000 Annual

Report on Form 10-K.

Note 8. Premises, Equipment, and Lease Commitments

The following is a summary of the Company’s premises and equipment:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Premises $ 37,197 $ 35,751

Equipment and furniture 246,974 178,815

Leasehold improvements 50,931 25,623

Land 2,723 2,723

337,825 242,912

Less accumulated depreciation 

and amortization 144,498 93,718

$ 193,327 $ 149,194

The Company generally leases office space and equipment under long-

term operating leases. The office lease agreements have expiration dates

ranging from January 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006, in some

cases with five-year renewal options. Some of these lease agreements

contain rent escalation clauses. Rent includes the pass-through of oper-

ating expenses and property taxes and totaled $64.5 million, $34.6 mil-

lion, and $20.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999,

and 1998.

The Company’s approximate future minimum rental payments under

noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2000 are as follows:

Amount
Year (dollars in thousands)

2001 $ 61,048

2002 52,332

2003 41,311

2004 28,417

2005 16,934

Thereafter 7,880

$ 207,922

Note 9. Deposits

The Company accepts time deposits with terms in excess of one year.

Time deposits in amounts of $100,000 or more totaled $8.72 billion and

$6.50 billion at December 31, 2000 and 1999. The aggregate amount

of time deposits by maturity as of December 31, 2000 is as follows:

Amount
Year (dollars in thousands)

2001 $ 6,266,924

2002 2,181,792

2003 1,251,417

2004 929,980

2005 and thereafter 1,553,340

$ 12,183,453
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Note 10. Short-Term Borrowings

Short-term borrowings consist primarily of federal funds purchased and

other transactions with maturities greater than one business day but less

than one year.

The following table summarizes all outstanding short-term borrow-

ings and the weighted average interest rate on those borrowings as of

December 31, 2000 and 1999:

December 31,

2000 1999

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest

(dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate

Federal funds 

purchased $ 15,000 6.69% $ 100,000 6.11%

Other $ 3,744 7.72% $ 26,289 6.24%

The Company has various short-term unsecured revolving credit agree-

ments with a borrowing capacity totaling $250 million. The Company

pays facility fees based on the total credit line. Interest on outstanding

balances is based upon LIBOR. The agreements expire 364 days from

their respective effective dates. The Company did not borrow against

these commitments during 2000 or 1999. The Company also has a 

sterling denominated 364-day line of credit in the amount of £25 million

($37.3 million equivalent based on the exchange rate at December 31,

2000) that is available for use by the United Kingdom branch of PNB.

Note 11. Long-Term Borrowings and Capital Securities

Long-term borrowings and capital securities consist of borrowings 

having an original maturity of one year or more. The following table sum-

marizes all outstanding long-term borrowings and capital securities as 

of December 31, 2000 and 1999:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Long-Term Borrowings

6.25% senior bank notes 

maturing in 2001 $ 179,349 $ 186,687

6.75% senior bank notes 

maturing in 2002 183,645 257,555

6.70% senior bank notes 

maturing in 2003 133,775 199,905

6.65% senior bank notes 

maturing in 2004 124,891 243,733

Variable rate senior bank notes 

(weighted average rate: 6.79%) — 69,995

3.25% convertible senior notes 

maturing in 2005 402,500 —

Other 3 181

Total long-term borrowings $ 1,024,163 $ 958,056

Capital Securities

Company obligated mandatorily 

redeemable capital securities 

of subsidiary trust holding solely 

junior subordinated deferrable 

interest debentures of the 

Company with an interest rate 

of 9.525% maturing in 2027 $ 111,057 $ 160,000
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Senior Bank Notes The senior bank notes are direct unconditional,

unsecured general obligations of the Company and are not subordinated

to any other indebtedness of the Company. The senior bank notes con-

sist of fixed rate three-year and five-year senior obligations and variable

rate two-year senior obligations. Interest is payable semiannually on the

fixed rate bank notes and quarterly on the variable rate bank notes. Dur-

ing 2000 and 1999, the Company made interest payments of $58.7 mil-

lion and $47.9 million on its outstanding senior bank notes. During 2000

and 1999, the Company repurchased and retired $266.5 million and

$61.6 million of senior bank notes, recognizing gains of $9.2 million 

and $1.4 million, which were included in “other non-interest income” in

the Company’s consolidated statements of income.

Convertible Senior Notes In August 2000, the Company issued

$402.5 million of 3.25% convertible senior notes due August 15, 2005

with interest payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of

each year, commencing on February 15, 2001. These senior notes are

convertible at the option of the holders, at the conversion rate of 14.4892

shares of the Company’s common stock for each $1,000 of note princi-

pal. The Company has the option to redeem these convertible senior

notes on or after August 20, 2003.

In February 2001, the Company issued $884.0 million principal

amount at maturity of its zero coupon convertible notes due February 15,

2021, with original issue discount accruing at a rate of 4.00% per annum

on a semiannual bond equivalent basis, beginning on February 15, 2001.

The Company will not pay interest on these notes before maturity, except

in limited circumstances under which the Company may elect to pay 

interest at the rate of 4.00% per annum after the occurrence of certain

tax events. The convertible notes are convertible at the option of the

holder, as long as specified conditions are met, into shares of the

Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of 6.2240 shares of com-

mon stock per note, subject to adjustment in certain events. However, the

Company may pay cash rather than deliver shares of its common stock

upon conversion under certain circumstances based on the formula 

provided for in the notes. The Company may redeem all or a portion of

the convertible notes for cash at any time on or after February 15, 2006.

Holders of the notes have the option of requiring the Company to repur-

chase the notes on certain specified dates at the prices provided for 

in the notes.

Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Capital Securities of

Subsidiary Trust Holding Solely Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest

Debentures of the Company The Company, through a wholly owned

subsidiary statutory business trust, Providian Capital I, issued manda-

torily redeemable preferred securities, which accumulate accrued distri-

butions that are payable semiannually. The Company has the right to 

defer payment of interest on the capital securities at any time and from

time to time, for a period not exceeding ten consecutive semiannual 

periods with respect to each deferral period, provided that no extension

period may extend beyond the stated maturity. During any such exten-

sion period, the Company’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock

would be restricted. The Company has the right to cause the redemp-

tion of the capital securities on or after February 1, 2007, or earlier in

the event of certain regulatory changes. The redemption price depends

on several factors, including the date of the redemption, the present

value of the principal and premium payable, and the accumulated but

unpaid distributions on the capital securities. The sole assets of Providian 

Capital I are $116.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Company’s

9.525% junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures due Febru-

ary 1, 2027 and the right to reimbursement of expenses under a related

expense agreement with the Company. During 2000, 1999, and 1998,

distributions totaling $17.1 million, $15.2 million, and $15.2 million on 

the capital securities were included in “other non-interest expense” in the

Company’s consolidated statements of income. The Company’s obliga-

tions under the capital securities constitute a full and unconditional guar-

antee. During 2000, the Company repurchased and retired $48.9 million

of capital securities, resulting in a $16.5 million pre-tax gain, which was

recorded in “other non-interest income” in the Company’s consolidated

statements of income.

Revolving Credit Facility The Company’s banking subsidiaries

maintain an unsecured revolving credit agreement, guaranteed by the

Company, with various financial institutions. The Company pays facility

fees based on the total commitment from the lenders and utilization fees

based on outstanding borrowings that exceed 50% of the total commit-

ment. Interest on outstanding borrowings is based upon a competitive bid

process or on the federal funds rate, LIBOR, or the prime rate, plus a

spread. The total commitment from the lenders under the revolving credit

agreement was $750.0 million at December 31, 2000 and $1.0 billion 

at December 31, 1999. There were no outstanding balances drawn on

this line as of December 31, 2000 and 1999. During 2000 and 1999, 

no borrowings were made and no interest expense was incurred on 

the revolving credit agreement. Interest expense on the revolving credit

agreement was $5.1 million for the year ended December 31, 1998. The

revolving credit agreement expires in January 2003.
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Note 12. Income Taxes

The components of the Company’s income tax expense are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Current

Federal $ 473,090 $ 537,173 $ 369,087

State 78,127 102,864 64,538

551,217 640,037 433,625

Deferred

Federal (132,516) (241,597) (212,048)

State 15,759 (31,287) (27,460)

(116,757) (272,884) (239,508)

$ 434,460 $ 367,153 $ 194,117

Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial report-

ing purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant

components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

as follows:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Gain on sale of loans $ 46,781 $ 25,608

Loan collection income 14,801 —

Deferred loan acquisition costs 12,536 10,781

Purchase accounting adjustment — 8,890

Other 10,621 7,484

84,739 52,763

Deferred Tax Assets

Allowance for credit losses 511,780 404,523

Deferred fee revenue 178,926 174,690

Long-term incentive accruals 34,615 27,676

State taxes 34,308 4,692

Other 18,953 11,196

778,582 622,777

Net deferred tax assets before 

unrealized (gains) losses 693,843 570,014

Unrealized (gains) losses on:

Securities available-for-sale (14,342) 993

Foreign currency translation 281 33

Net deferred tax assets $ 679,782 $ 571,040

The Company believes that it will fully realize its total deferred income

tax assets as of December 31, 2000 based upon the Company’s recov-

erable taxes from prior carryback years, its total deferred income tax 

liabilities, and its current level of operating income.

The following is a reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax

rate to the Company’s actual effective income tax rate:

(percent of pre-tax income) 2000 1999 1998

Statutory federal rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income taxes 5.6 5.2 5.0

Other (0.6) (0.2) (0.4)

Effective tax rate 40.0% 40.0% 39.6%

Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s principal objective in entering into off-balance sheet

interest rate risk management instruments is to reduce interest rate risk

by more closely aligning the repricing characteristics of the Company’s

assets and liabilities. The operations of the Company are subject to the

risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that there is a difference in

the repricing characteristics of interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing deposits and other liabilities. The goal is to maintain levels of net

interest income while reducing interest rate risk and facilitating the fund-

ing needs of the Company. To achieve that objective, the Company uses

a combination of interest rate risk management instruments, including

interest rate swap and cap agreements, with maturities ranging from

2001 to 2015.

When interest rate risk management instruments are used to hedge

reported assets and liabilities, the net receipts or payments are recog-

nized as an adjustment to interest expense. As of December 31, 2000

and 1999, the Company had $1.38 billion and $1.05 billion in notional

amount of interest rate swaps outstanding.

The average effective interest rate on the Company’s interest-

bearing liabilities after giving effect to the swaps was 6.24%, 5.59%,

and 5.56% for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998.

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998, interest rate

swap agreements decreased interest expense by $6.0 million, $3.5 mil-

lion, and $2.1 million.

When interest rate risk management instruments are used to hedge

the excess servicing income received from loan securitizations, the net

receipts or disbursements are recognized as an adjustment to loan 

servicing income. During 2000 and 1998, there were $4.1 million and

$1.2 million in net receipts and in 1999, there were $0.1 million in 

net disbursements.
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In addition, the Company has entered into interest rate cap agreements,

the effect of which is to establish maximum interest rates on a portion of

its managed funding sources. To the extent the Company has funded

fixed rate receivables with variable rate deposits or debt, the interest rate

caps are designed to protect net interest margin. To the extent the

Company has securitized fixed rate receivables using variable rate 

instruments, the interest rate caps are designed to protect loan servic-

ing income. As of December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company had

$638.6 million and $644.9 million in notional amount of interest rate 

caps outstanding. The Company received no interest rate cap agreement

interest payments in 2000, 1999, or 1998.

The following is a summary of the Company’s interest rate cap

agreement maturity distributions as of December 31, 2000:

Notional Weighted
Amount Average
Maturing Strike

Year (dollars in thousands) Rate

2001 $ 363,734 11.92%

2002 $ 238,003 11.92%

2003 $ 36,888 11.48%

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is the risk of loss from a coun-

terparty failing to perform according to the terms of an agreement. This

credit risk is measured as the gross unrealized gain on the financial

instruments. The Company had gross unrealized gains on interest rate

swap agreements of $11.0 million and $20.9 million at December 31,

2000 and 1999. The Company has reduced credit risk in these instru-

ments by entering into interest risk management agreements with nation-

ally recognized financial institutions and dealers that carry at least

investment grade ratings. Also, the Company’s policy is to diversify its

credit risk exposure across a number of counterparties. The Company

determines, on an individual counterparty basis, the need for collateral

or other security to support financial instruments with credit risk. The

Company does not anticipate default by any counterparties.

Foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge the

Company’s foreign currency risk. The Company’s outstanding foreign

exchange forward contracts as of December 31, 2000 had original terms

of 90 days or less and remaining maturities of 30 days or less. As of

December 31, 2000, the Company had $237.8 million and $3.5 million

in notional amount of foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding in

British pounds sterling and Argentine pesos.
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The following table summarizes the expected or contractual maturities and weighted average interest rates associated with amounts to be

received or paid by the Company:

Balance at
Maturing in

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2000 2001 2002 2003 Thereafter

Pay Fixed/Receive Variable

Notional value $ 500,000 $ — $ — $ 500,000 $ —

Weighted average pay rate 5.48% — — 5.48% —

Weighted average receive rate 6.71% — — 6.71% —

Receive Fixed/Pay Variable

Notional value $ 705,000 $ 30,000 $ 20,000 $ — $ 655,000

Weighted average pay rate 6.55% 6.61% 6.80% — 6.54%

Weighted average receive rate 7.59% 7.07% 6.99% — 7.63%

Receive Variable/Pay Variable

Notional value $ 170,476 $ 170,476 $ — $ — $ —

Weighted average pay rate 7.26% 7.26% — — —

Weighted average receive rate 12.71% 12.71% — — —

Total Swaps

Notional value $ 1,375,476 $ 200,476 $ 20,000 $ 500,000 $ 655,000

Weighted average pay rate 6.25% 7.16% 6.80% 5.48% 6.54%

Weighted average receive rate 7.91% 11.87% 6.99% 6.71% 7.63%

Note: Variable rates are held constant for future periods at their effective rates as of their most recent reset prior to December 31, 2000.



Note 14. Capital Requirements

The Company’s banking subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory

capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.

Under these requirements, the Company’s banking subsidiaries must

meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their

assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under

regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s banking subsidiaries’

capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judg-

ments by the regulators with respect to components, risk weightings,

and other factors. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can

result in mandatory and additional discretionary actions by regulators

that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company’s con-

solidated financial statements.

The quantitative measures established by applicable regulatory

guidelines to ensure capital adequacy require that the Company’s bank-

ing subsidiaries maintain minimum ratios of Total and Tier 1 risk-based

capital to risk-weighted assets (Total and Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital

Ratios) and of Tier 1 risk-based capital to adjusted average total assets

(Leverage Ratio). The Company’s banking subsidiaries met all regulatory

capital adequacy requirements to which they were subject at Decem-

ber 31, 2000 and 1999. At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Com-

pany’s banking subsidiaries met the “well capitalized” requirements

under the regulatory guidelines. To be categorized as “well capitalized,”

the Company’s banking subsidiaries must maintain minimum capital

requirements as set forth in the following table:
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Total Tier 1 Tier 1
Risk-Based Capital Risk-Based Capital Leverage Ratio(1)

(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2000

Providian National Bank

Actual $ 2,075,140 10.58% $ 1,807,829 9.22% $ 1,807,829 11.90%

Minimum capital adequacy 1,568,483 8.00% 784,241 4.00% 607,664 4.00%

Minimum well capitalized 1,960,603 10.00% 1,176,362 6.00% 759,579 5.00%

Providian Bank

Actual 184,811 14.94% 168,683 13.64% 168,683 6.34%

Minimum capital adequacy 98,934 8.00% 49,467 4.00% 106,481 4.00%

Minimum well capitalized 123,667 10.00% 74,200 6.00% 133,101 5.00%

December 31, 1999

Providian National Bank

Actual $ 1,396,127 11.17% $ 1,224,177 9.79% $ 1,224,177 10.88%

Minimum capital adequacy 1,000,246 8.00% 500,123 4.00% 450,076 4.00%

Minimum well capitalized 1,250,308 10.00% 750,185 6.00% 562,596 5.00%

Providian Bank

Actual 157,423 15.08% 143,884 13.78% 143,884 10.54%

Minimum capital adequacy 83,511 8.00% 41,755 4.00% 54,595 4.00%

Minimum well capitalized 104,389 10.00% 62,633 6.00% 68,243 5.00%

(1) Minimum capital adequacy ratio is 3.0% for the highest rated institutions.



Note 15. Shareholders’ Equity

In October 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a two-for-

one split of the Company’s common stock in the form of a stock dividend

issued on November 30, 2000 to shareholders of record on Novem-

ber 15, 2000. Accordingly, the computation of basic and diluted earn-

ings per share for all periods presented have been retroactively adjusted

to include the effect of the Company’s stock split.

The Company is party to several agreements in which it has con-

tracted to purchase shares of its common stock on a forward basis. At

the Company’s election, the agreements allow settlements on a physical

basis or, subject to certain conditions, on a net basis in shares of the

Company’s common stock or in cash. To the extent that the market price

of the Company’s common stock on a settlement date is greater than the

forward purchase price, the Company will receive the net differential. To

the extent that the market price of the Company’s common stock on a

settlement date is lower than the forward purchase price, the Company

will settle the agreed-upon premium amount due to the counterparty. At

December 31, 2000 and 1999, the agreements covered 3,989,398 and

2,306,026 shares of the Company’s common stock at an average for-

ward price of $50.84 and $48.02 per share. The agreements generally

have terms of one year but may be settled or partially settled earlier at

the Company’s option. If the agreements were settled on a net share

basis at the December 31, 2000 market price of the Company’s com-

mon stock ($57.50 per share), the Company would receive approxi-

mately 462,076 shares of its common stock from the counterparties.

During the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, settlements from

forward purchase agreements resulted in the Company receiving

1,033,428 and 496,638 shares of its common stock and paying pre-

mium amounts of $0.9 million and $1.3 million, which were recorded as

adjustments to additional paid-in capital.

Note 16. Cumulative Other Comprehensive Income

The components of cumulative other comprehensive income, net of

related income taxes, for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999,

and 1998 are as follows:

Cumulative
Unrealized Foreign Other

Gain (Loss) Currency Comprehensive
(dollars in thousands) on Securities Translation Income

Balance at 

December 31, 1997 $ — $ — $ —

Other comprehensive 

income (535) — (535)

Tax benefit (expense) 215 — 215

Balance at 

December 31, 1998 $ (320) $ — $ (320)

Other comprehensive 

income (3,143) 76 (3,067)

Tax benefit (expense) 1,256 (30) 1,226

Balance at 

December 31, 1999 $ (2,207) $ 46 $ (2,161)

Other comprehensive 

income 39,533 (718) 38,815

Tax benefit (expense) (15,813) 251 (15,562)

Balance at 

December 31, 2000 $ 21,513 $ (421) $ 21,092

Note 17. Earnings per Common Share

Earnings per common share—basic is computed by dividing net income

by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the

applicable period. Earnings per common share—assuming dilution is

computed by dividing net income, adjusted for interest on convertible

notes net of taxes, by the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding after consideration of the potential dilutive effect of common

share equivalents (CSEs). CSEs are computed based on the treasury

stock method using the average market price of the Company’s common

shares for the applicable period. CSEs for the Company are related 

to the employee stock-based incentive programs, certain convertible 

senior notes, and the forward purchase agreements entered into by the

Company. For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, shares

related to forward purchase agreements were not included in the com-

putation as their inclusion would have been antidilutive.
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Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, 
except per share data) 2000 1999 1998

Basic

Net income available to 

common stockholders $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Weighted average common 

shares outstanding 284,174 282,742 283,744

Earnings per common 

share—basic $ 2.29 $ 1.95 $ 1.04

Diluted

Net income available to 

common stockholders $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Plus: Income impact of 

assumed conversions

Interest on convertible 

senior notes (net of tax) 2,769 — —

Net income available to 

common stockholders 

with assumed conversions $ 654,531 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Weighted average common 

shares outstanding 284,174 282,742 283,744

Plus: Incremental shares 

from assumed conversions

Restricted stock 

issued—non vested 1,091 1,056 1,080

Employee stock options(1) 6,452 7,296 5,544

Convertible senior notes 2,071 — —

Forward purchase 

contracts(2) 254 — —

Dilutive potential common 

shares 9,868 8,352 6,624

Adjusted weighted average 

common shares 294,042 291,094 290,368

Earnings per common 

share—assuming dilution $ 2.23 $ 1.89 $ 1.02

(1) During 2000 and 1999, options to purchase 3,298,008 and 3,543,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per com-
mon share, because the exercise price of the options was greater than the average 
market price of the common shares and, therefore, the inclusion of such options would 
be antidilutive.  (2) For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, shares related to 
forward purchase agreements were not included in the computation as their inclusion would
have been antidilutive.

Note 18. Stock Ownership and Stock Option Plans

At December 31, 2000, the Company had three stock-based compen-

sation plans: the Company’s 1999 Non-Officer Equity Incentive Plan, the

2000 Stock Incentive Plan, and the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

During 2000, the Company combined and restated the 1997 Stock

Option Plan and the Stock Ownership Plan into the 2000 Stock Incentive

Plan. The shares authorized under this restated Plan equal the sum of the

shares authorized under the two original plans (adjusted for stock splits).

The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan provides for grants of incentive and

nonqualified stock options to employees, non-employee directors, and con-

sultants. Stock options granted under this Plan have an exercise price

equal to the market value of the Company’s common stock at the date

of grant and a maximum term of ten years. During 2000, the Company

granted nonqualified options to purchase 6,613,912 shares of the Com-

pany’s common stock to employees, non-employee directors, and con-

sultants under this Plan.

The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan also provides for grants of restricted

and nonrestricted stock to employees, non-employee directors, and con-

sultants. A maximum of 12,000,000 shares of the Company’s common

stock are permitted to be granted under this Plan as restricted stock or

nonrestricted stock. Restricted stock is subject to forfeiture during the

vesting period. During 2000, the Company granted 552,422(1) shares of

restricted stock and 6,355 shares of nonrestricted stock to employees

and non-employee directors under this Plan. The Company records 

the market value of restricted stock grants as deferred compensation 

at the time of grant and amortizes such amounts over the applicable 

vesting period.

The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan provides for a combined maximum

of 47,812,572 shares of the Company’s common stock to be issued in

conjunction with the exercise of stock options granted and grants of

restricted or nonrestricted stock. As of December 31, 2000, the number

of common shares available for future grants under this Plan was

18,117,020 shares.

During 2000, the Company also made grants of options and

restricted stock under the 1999 Non-Officer Equity Incentive Plan. The

grants under this Plan are subject to forfeiture during the vesting period.

During 2000, the Company granted 2,357,200 options to purchase

shares of the Company’s common stock under this Plan. The Company

also granted 84,160 shares of restricted stock under this Plan during

2000. As of December 31, 2000, the number of common shares avail-

able for future grants under this Plan was 1,481,558 shares.

(1) Includes 20,000 shares granted in December 1999.
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The Company’s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan authorizes a

maximum of 3,000,000 shares of common stock to be issued to eligible

employees. Under this Plan, shares of the Company’s common stock

may be purchased at the end of each offering period at 85% of the lower

of the fair market value on the first or the last day of such offering period.

Eligible employees may designate a portion of their compensation, not

to exceed 7% of their gross compensation during an offering period, to

purchase shares under this Plan. The offering periods begin every six

months, on each January 1 and July 1, and have a duration of one year.

During 2000, employees purchased 132,114 shares of the Company’s

common stock at an average price of $37.52 under this Plan. As of

December 31, 2000, the number of shares available for future purchases

by employees under this Plan was 2,519,774 shares.

The following is a summary of stock options outstanding and exer-

cisable under the Company’s compensation plans at December 31, 2000:
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Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Weighted 
Average Weighted Weighted 

Remaining Average Number of Average
Range of Exercise Prices Number of Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$ 2.50–10.00 1,598,498 4.79 $ 7.09 1,598,496 $ 7.09

10.01–15.00 5,882,982 4.08 10.76 5,870,907 10.76

15.01–20.00 3,837,450 7.34 19.56 2,448,950 19.56

20.01–35.00 151,916 8.41 28.33 80,215 25.48

35.01–50.00 9,275,975 9.22 41.97 487,653 45.72

50.01–65.00 3,134,674 8.47 62.55 1,027,448 62.96

23,881,495 7.23 $ 30.96 11,513,669 $ 18.36

Presented below are the changes to the stock options under the Company’s compensation plans for the years ending December 31, 2000, 1999,

and 1998:

2000 1999 1998

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
(000) Exercise Price (000) Exercise Price (000) Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 19,467,388 $ 25.47 16,963,528 $ 12.63 14,533,524 $ 9.30

Granted 8,971,112 40.82 5,828,700 55.96 5,086,314 19.68

Exercised (2,565,693) 13.48 (2,319,042) 10.27 (2,062,594) 6.82

Forfeited(1) (1,991,312) 44.25 (1,005,798) 20.55 (593,716) 11.83

Outstanding at end of year 23,881,495 $ 30.96 19,467,388 $ 25.47 16,963,528 $ 12.63

(1) 1999 forfeitures include options to purchase 367,154 common shares that were surrendered and canceled in exchange for participation in a deferred compensation program. For the
year ended December 31, 1999, the Company recognized an expense of $18.8 million in connection with this exchange.



The following table reflects on a pro forma basis the Company’s net

income and earnings per common share with and without dilution, as if

compensation costs for stock options had been recorded based on the

fair value at the date of grant or election under the Company’s compen-

sation plans, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123. Since 

pro forma compensation costs relate to all periods over which the grants

vest, the initial impact on the Company’s pro forma net income may not

be representative of compensation costs in subsequent years, when the

effect of the amortization of multiple awards would be reflected.

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, 
except per share data) 2000 1999 1998

Net Income $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Pro forma $ 588,212 $ 515,254 $ 280,938

Net income per 

common share:

As reported—basic $ 2.29 $ 1.95 $ 1.04

As reported—

assuming dilution $ 2.23 $ 1.89 $ 1.02

Net income per 

common share:

Pro forma—basic $ 2.07 $ 1.82 $ 0.99

Pro forma—

assuming dilution $ 2.01 $ 1.77 $ 0.97

The fair value of the stock options granted by the Company was esti-

mated at the grant/rollover date using the Black-Scholes modeling tech-

nique with the following assumptions: for the year ended December 31,

2000, risk-free weighted average interest rate of 6.58%; weighted aver-

age dividend yield of 0.40%; weighted average expected volatility of

70%; expected stock option life of four and a half years; and expected

life for an offering under the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of one

year. For the year ended December 31, 1999, risk-free weighted aver-

age interest rate of 5.55%; weighted average dividend yield of 0.29%;

weighted average expected volatility of 62%; expected stock option life

of five years; and expected life for an offering under the 1997 Employee

Stock Purchase Plan of one year.

The weighted average fair values of the stock options granted by

the Company during 2000 and 1999 were $24.22 and $30.40 per share. 

The exercise price of each stock option is the market price of the 

Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Expiration dates range

from August 7, 2001 to December 6, 2010 for options outstanding at

December 31, 2000.

Note 19. Defined Contribution 401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan offering 

tax-deferred investment opportunities to substantially all of its U.S.

employees who have completed at least 1,000 hours of service.

Employees may elect to make both pre-tax and after-tax contributions

based on certain limits set by the Internal Revenue Service. The Com-

pany makes matching contributions in an amount determined at the dis-

cretion of the Company. The Company uses its common stock for these

matching contributions. As of December 31, 2000, the 401(k) plan held

1,106,503 shares of the Company’s common stock with a market value

of $63.6 million. For the year ended December 31, 2000, the 401(k) plan

received $0.1 million in common stock dividends from the Company for

shares of common stock held. Employee contributions are invested at 

the direction of the employee participant and may be invested in the

Company’s common stock. Total 401(k) plan expenses for the years

ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998 were $5.9 million, $4.1 mil-

lion, and $3.2 million, respectively.

In addition, the Company makes retirement contributions to the

401(k) plan for employees with at least one year of employment regard-

less of whether such employees contribute to the 401(k) plan. The Com-

pany made retirement contributions to the 401(k) plan of $12.6 million,

$8.3 million, and $6.2 million during 2000, 1999, and 1998. The retire-

ment contributions vest 20% on completion of the third year of employ-

ment and an additional 20% for each completed year of employment

thereafter until fully vested.

Note 20. Segment Information

The Company derives its income primarily from credit card finance

charges, various credit card fees, cardholder service product sales, 

and servicing fees and excess servicing on securitized credit card 

loans. After the sale of the home loan business in 2000, the Company

reorganized its reporting segments to include the former Emerging

Businesses segment and the Other segment in one aggregated Credit

Card segment. Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change in

segment reporting.
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The Company analyzes its financial performance on a managed

basis. Segment information is presented below on the Company’s man-

aged loan portfolios. As described in Note 2, Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies, the Company securitizes certain loans and records

such securitizations as sales, which has the effect of removing such

loans from the Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition.

Year ended Total Securitization Total
(dollars in thousands) Managed Adjustment Reported

December 31, 2000

Interest income $ 4,520,859 $ (1,820,912) $ 2,699,947

Interest expense 1,576,422 (701,248) 875,174

Net interest income 2,944,437 (1,119,664) 1,824,773

Provision for credit 

losses 2,225,861 (710,511) 1,515,350

Net interest income 

after provision for 

credit losses 718,576 (409,153) 309,423

Non-interest income 2,839,149 409,153 3,248,302

Non-interest expense 2,471,503 — 2,471,503

Income before 

income taxes 1,086,222 — 1,086,222

Income tax expense 434,460 — 434,460

Net Income $ 651,762 $ — $ 651,762

Ending loans 

outstanding $ 27,122,815 $(13,352,658) $ 13,770,157

December 31, 1999

Interest income $ 3,009,538 $ (1,385,262) $ 1,624,276

Interest expense 901,199 (452,129) 449,070

Net interest income 2,108,339 (933,133) 1,175,206

Provision for credit 

losses 1,706,678 (607,547) 1,099,131

Net interest income 

after provision for 

credit losses 401,661 (325,586) 76,075

Non-interest income 2,086,890 325,586 2,412,476

Non-interest expense 1,571,126 — 1,571,126

Income before 

income taxes 917,425 — 917,425

Income tax expense 367,153 — 367,153

Net Income $ 550,272 $ — $ 550,272

Ending loans 

outstanding $ 21,026,453 $ (9,416,499) $ 11,609,954

Year ended Total Securitization Total
(dollars in thousands) Managed Adjustment Reported

December 31, 1998

Interest income $ 2,029,619 $ (1,187,040) $ 842,579

Interest expense 667,714 (420,448) 247,266

Net interest income 1,361,905 (766,592) 595,313

Provision for credit 

losses 1,057,398 (511,469) 545,929

Net interest income 

after provision for 

credit losses 304,507 (255,123) 49,384

Non-interest income 1,011,056 255,123 1,266,179

Non-interest expense 825,000 — 825,000

Income before 

income taxes 490,563 — 490,563

Income tax expense 194,117 — 194,117

Net Income $ 296,446 $ — $ 296,446

Ending loans 

outstanding $ 13,244,948 $ (7,503,842) $ 5,741,106

Note 21. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments is dis-

closed below. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair

values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation

techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assump-

tions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash

flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be sub-

stantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases,

might not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument. In addi-

tion, these values do not consider the potential income taxes or other

expenses that might be incurred upon an actual sale of an asset or settle-

ment of a liability. In accordance with GAAP, certain financial instruments

and all nonfinancial instruments have been excluded. Accordingly, the

aggregate fair value amounts presented do not necessarily represent or

affect the underlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Com-

pany in estimating its fair value disclosure for financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents are carried

at an amount that approximates fair value.
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Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased Under Resale Agree-

ments Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale 

agreements are carried at an amount that approximates fair value due 

to the short-term nature of these assets.

Investment Securities The estimated fair values of investment secu-

rities by type are provided in Note 4, Investment Securities. Fair value is

based on quoted market prices when available or, if unavailable, fair value

is estimated using quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Loans Receivable The carrying amount of loans approximates 

fair value.

Interest Receivable and Due from Securitizations The carrying

amounts reported in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial

condition approximate fair value.

Deposits The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (money

market deposit accounts and certain savings accounts) are equal to the

amount payable on demand at the reporting date (carrying amount). Fair

value for fixed rate certificates of deposit and other fixed rate deposits

are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies inter-

est rates at an assumed marginal market funding rate.

Short-Term Borrowings Short-term borrowings consist primarily 

of federal funds purchased. The carrying value of short-term borrow-

ings approximates fair value based upon the short-term nature of 

the borrowings.

Long-Term Borrowings The fair value of the Company’s long-term

borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that

applies interest rates at an assumed marginal market funding rate.

Capital Securities The fair value of the Company’s mandatorily

redeemable capital securities is estimated using a discounted cash flow

calculation that applies interest rates at an assumed marginal market

funding rate.

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments The fair value of the Company’s off-

balance sheet instruments (interest rate swaps, interest rate caps, and

lending commitments) is based on valuation models, if material, using

discounted cash flows (swaps), an assessment of current replacement

cost (caps), and valuation models as previously described for loans

receivable (lending commitments). Credit card lending commitments

were determined to have no fair value.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are

as follows:
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December 31,

2000 1999

(dollars in thousands) Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 446,705 $ 446,705 $ 182,915 $ 182,915

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under 

resale agreements 307,206 307,206 1,298,000 1,298,000

Investment securities:

Available-for-sale 1,885,474 1,885,474 455,238 455,238

Held-to-maturity 686,214 686,721 126,258 125,697

Loans receivable, less allowance for credit losses 12,324,519 12,324,519 10,545,173 10,545,173

Interest receivable 158,633 158,633 108,087 108,087

Due from securitizations 971,939 971,939 614,217 614,217

Liabilities

Deposits 13,113,416 13,298,479 10,538,123 10,237,144

Short-term borrowings 18,744 18,744 126,289 126,289

Long-term borrowings 1,024,163 1,097,659 958,056 942,050

Capital securities 111,057 166,551 160,000 194,477

Off-Balance Sheet

Interest rate swaps — 10,229 — 12,251

Interest rate caps — 2 — 62



Note 22. Parent Company Financial Information

The Company conducts its credit card operations primarily through its

banking subsidiaries, Providian National Bank and Providian Bank. At

December 31, 2000, Providian National Bank and Providian Bank 

represented 83.54% and 13.99%, respectively, of the Company’s con-

solidated assets. The parent company’s investment in subsidiaries rep-

resents the total equity of all consolidated subsidiaries, using the equity

method of accounting for investments.

Providian Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only)

Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 467,396 $ 67,328

Loans receivable 298 264

Investment in subsidiaries 2,128,736 1,459,871

Deferred taxes 679,328 579,930

Prepaid expenses and other assets 68,652 12,434

Total assets $ 3,344,410 $ 2,119,827

Liabilities

Due to subsidiaries $ 538,082 $ 371,968

Long-term borrowings 518,506 164,949

Income taxes payable 99,025 127,667

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 156,614 122,767

Total liabilities 1,312,227 787,351

Shareholders’ Equity

Common stock 2,862 954

Retained earnings 2,014,205 1,394,293

Cumulative other comprehensive 

income 21,092 (2,161)

Common stock held in treasury—

at cost (5,976) (60,610)

Total shareholders’ equity 2,032,183 1,332,476

Total liabilities and shareholders’ 

equity $ 3,344,410 $ 2,119,827

Providian Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only)

Statements of Income

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Revenues

Dividends from 

subsidiaries $ 230,000 $ 170,271 $ 320,000

Interest income:

Investments 6,902 5,039 1,609

Loans 27 23 27

Subsidiaries 11,111 5,304 4,530

Other income 20,211 2,945 (103)

268,251 183,582 326,063

Expenses

Salaries and 

employee benefits 17,566 31,671 10,832

Interest expense:

Borrowings 4,615 — —

Subsidiaries 309 221 —

General and 

administration 72,406 54,636 37,424

94,896 86,528 48,256

Income before income 

taxes and equity 

in undistributed 

earnings of 

subsidiaries 173,355 97,054 277,807

Income tax benefit (25,327) (29,068) (16,819)

Equity in undistributed 

earnings of 

subsidiaries 453,080 424,150 1,820

Net Income $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446
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Providian Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only)

Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Operating Activities

Net Income $ 651,762 $ 550,272 $ 296,446

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (453,080) (424,150) (1,820)

Amortization of deferred compensation 13,518 7,738 4,415

(Increase) decrease in other assets (56,217) (1,791) 1,676

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities 33,847 54,108 (5,610)

Increase in deferred income taxes receivable (99,398) (273,696) (239,507)

Increase in taxes payable 12,942 22,108 122,951

Due to subsidiaries 107,465 251,877 96,116

Net cash provided by operating activities 210,839 186,466 274,667

Investing Activities

Net decrease (increase) in investment securities 23,252 146,442 (98,496)

Net decrease in note receivable to affiliates 73,614 — —

Net increase in investment in subsidiaries (215,784) (290,723) —

Net cash used for investing activities (118,918) (144,281) (98,496)

Financing Activities

Net decrease in note payable to affiliates (15,000) — —

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 39,953 27,431 16,464

Purchase of common stock for treasury (40,431) (74,004) (97,971)

Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior notes 402,500 — —

Repurchase of junior subordinated debentures of the Company (capital securities) (48,943) — —

Put warrant premium — — 1,325

Dividends paid to shareholders (29,932) (28,374) (21,358)

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 308,147 (74,947) (101,540)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 400,068 (32,762) 74,631

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 67,328 100,090 25,459

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 467,396 $ 67,328 $ 100,090
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The consolidated financial statements appearing in this Annual Report

have been prepared by management, which is responsible for their

preparation, integrity, and fair presentation. The statements have been

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States and necessarily include some amounts that are

based on management’s best estimates and judgments.

Management is responsible for the system of internal controls over

financial reporting at Providian Financial Corporation and its subsidiaries,

a system designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the prepa-

ration of reliable published financial statements. This system is aug-

mented by written policies and procedures, including a code of conduct

to foster a strong ethical climate, a program of internal audit, and the

selection and training of qualified personnel. Management believes that

the Company’s system of internal controls over financial reporting 

provides reasonable assurance that the financial records are reliable 

for preparing financial statements.

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors,

consisting solely of outside Directors, meets with the independent audi-

tors, management, and internal auditors periodically to discuss internal

controls over financial reporting, auditing, and financial reporting matters.

The Committee reviews the scope and results of the audit effort with the

independent auditors. The Committee also meets with the Company’s

independent auditors and internal auditors without management present

to ensure that these groups have free access to the Committee.

The independent auditors are recommended by the Audit and Com-

pliance Committee of the Board of Directors, selected by the Board of

Directors, and ratified by the shareholders. Based upon their audit of the

consolidated financial statements, the independent auditors, Ernst & Young

LLP, have issued their Auditors’ Report, which appears on this page.

Shailesh J. Mehta

Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

David J. Petrini

Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer
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Board of Directors

Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial

condition of Providian Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated statements

of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present

fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of

Providian Financial Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2000

and 1999, and the consolidated results of their operations and their 

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States.

San Francisco, California

January 18, 2001, 

except for Note 11, as to which the date is February 15, 2001 

Management’s Responsibilities 
for Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Auditors
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Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

Summary of Consolidated Quarterly Financial Information

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2000(1)

Interest income $ 627,899 $ 653,579 $ 691,325 $ 727,144

Interest expense 204,658 216,871 224,771 228,874

Net interest income 423,241 436,708 466,554 498,270

Provision for credit losses 361,213 373,590 332,241 448,306

Non-interest income 727,540 823,804 749,894 947,064

Non-interest expense 499,071 782,291 549,748 640,393

Income before income taxes 290,497 104,631 334,459 356,635

Net Income $ 174,318 $ 62,772 $ 200,666 $ 214,006

Earnings per common share—basic $ 0.62 $ 0.22 $ 0.71 $ 0.75

Earnings per common share—assuming dilution $ 0.60 $ 0.22 $ 0.68 $ 0.73

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic (000) 283,280 283,680 284,372 284,747

Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming dilution (000) 290,500 291,582 295,428 297,743

1999(1)

Interest income $ 291,616 $ 372,929 $ 439,248 $ 520,483

Interest expense 80,501 100,270 117,619 150,680

Net interest income 211,115 272,659 321,629 369,803

Provision for credit losses 182,073 255,222 288,279 373,557

Non-interest income 477,256 571,458 651,118 712,644

Non-interest expense 317,106 377,840 433,188 442,992

Income before income taxes 189,192 211,055 251,280 265,898

Net Income $ 113,546 $ 126,486 $ 150,872 $ 159,368

Earnings per common share—basic $ 0.40 $ 0.45 $ 0.54 $ 0.57

Earnings per common share—assuming dilution $ 0.39 $ 0.44 $ 0.52 $ 0.55

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic (000) 282,494 282,966 282,592 282,902

Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming dilution (000) 291,004 291,092 290,140 290,328

Common Stock Price Ranges and Dividends (Unaudited)

Dividends Dividends
Declared per Declared per

Common Common
High Low Share High Low Share

2000(1) 1999(1)

First quarter $ 44.72 $ 30.06 $ 0.025 First quarter $ 58.50 $ 35.41 $ 0.025

Second quarter 49.78 40.78 0.025 Second quarter 65.81 39.22 0.025

Third quarter 64.78 44.75 0.025 Third quarter 51.63 38.81 0.025

Fourth quarter 66.72 40.53 0.030 Fourth quarter 57.75 38.81 0.025

(1) All common share and per common share data have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend in November 2000.

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “PVN.” There were 9,711 common stockholders of

record as of February 15, 2001.

Quarterly and Common Stock Data
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Board of Directors

Shailesh J. Mehta  

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, Providian Financial Corporation

Christina L. Darwall  

Executive Director, Harvard Business School California Research Center

James V. Elliott  

Former Executive Vice President, Providian Financial Corporation

Lyle Everingham  

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, The Kroger Co.

J. David Grissom  

Chairman, Mayfair Capital

F. Warren McFarlan, D.B.A.   

Senior Associate Dean and Professor of Business Administration, Harvard Business School

Ruth M. Owades  

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Calyx & Corolla

Leonard D. Schaeffer  

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Wellpoint Health Networks Inc.

Larry D. Thompson  

Partner, King & Spalding

John L. Weinberg  

Senior Chairman, Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Senior Management

Shailesh J. Mehta  

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

David R. Alvarez  

President, Integrated Card Business

Kirk Inglis  

President, First Select 

James G. Jones  

President, International Business

Lauri Kober  

Chief Executive Officer, GetSmart.com, Inc.

David J. Petrini  

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

James P. Redmond  

Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Management Officer

Ellen Richey  

Vice Chairman, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

John H. Rogers  

Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer

James H. Rowe 

President, Global E-Commerce

Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Corporate Headquarters

Providian Financial

201 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

(415) 534-0404

w w w. p r o v i d i a n . c o m

Corporate Contacts

Community Giving:

Jim Wu n d e r m a n

Senior Vice President, Community Aff a i r s

(415) 278-4651

Government Aff a i r s :

Konrad Alt

Chief Public Policy Officer  

(415) 278-6723

Media Relations:

Alan Elias

Vice President, Corporate Communications

(415) 278-4189

Investor Inquiries

Investor information is available on our Web site at 

www.providian.com under the Investor Relations section. 

P r o v i d i a n ’s annual reports, quarterly earnings releases, 

press releases, and SEC filings are available on the site, 

as well as current stock price data and a calendar of 

upcoming events. If you prefer, you may write or call us at:

Investor Relations

Providian Financial Corporation

201 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

(415) 278-6170

Institutional investors or analysts seeking information 

about Providian should contact:

Nancy Murphy

Senior Vice President, Investor Relations

(415) 278-4483

Corporate Information

Stock Exchange Listings

New York Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange

Ticker Symbol: PVN

Transfer Agent / Registrar for Common Stock

First Chicago Trust Company of New Yo r k

a Division of Equiserve

P.O. Box 2500

Jersey City, NJ 07303-2500

(800) 317-4445

w w w. e q u i s e r v e . c o m

Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

Direct Investment Program

Providian Financial’s transfer agent, First Chicago Tr u s t

Company of New York, a Division of Equiserve, offers 

a direct investment program for investors interested in 

purchasing or selling Providian Financial common stock.

Additional information is available through a link from 

P r o v i d i a n ’s Web site to the DirectSERVICET M I n v e s t m e n t

P r o g r a m ’s Web site, or you may call or write:

The DirectSERVICET M Investment Program

First Chicago Trust Company of New Yo r k

a Division of Equiserve

P.O. Box 2598

Jersey City, NJ 07303-2598

(800) 482-8690

w w w. e q u i s e r v e . c o m
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Services Used:

VISA

MasterCard

Classic Card

Gold Card

Gold Premier Card

Platinum Card

Smart Card

Aria Card 

WebCard

GetSmart.com

Money Market Deposit Account

Brian Spiker /      Telecredit Representative , Credit Services

For me to like my job and be good at it, I have to be proud of the company and be a strong supporter

of it. I am, here at Providian. We’re a big advocate of friendly service and customer satisfaction. I’m a

big supporter of that too. I really enjoy it when I can help a customer out and show them there is an

advantage to being with Providian for the long term. When I spoke with Ellena Ruiz, we were consoli-

dating her balances into her Providian Gold Premier account. She especially appreciated that I kept

going over every detail to make sure she understood all the aspects of the transaction. At the end of the

call she asked to speak with my manager to say how pleased she was, and then she wrote a letter, too.” 

“ I am a customer service representative
myself, so I know when I’m getting good 
service. Your service is wonderful.”
Ellena Ruiz, Covina, California

re: Brian Spiker, Providian Employee, Sacramento, CA
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Services Used:

VISA

MasterCard
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Gold Card

Gold Premier Card

Platinum Card

Smart Card

Aria Card 

WebCard

GetSmart.com

Money Market Deposit Account

Melissa Zietz /      Project Manager, Training and Communications

One of the Providian differences is that we give customers an opportunity to explain their situations, and

we listen closely to what they need. Karla Wood called us right after learning that her insurance wouldn’t

cover much of the bill for a car she rented while her own car was being repaired after an accident. She

was shaken and upset when she called. Providian people are well trained to provide customers with 

consistent information in a caring manner. Our representatives and managers are given the tools to be

able to help. It’s what allows them to offer credit line increases and other solutions for customers like

Ms. Wood. Our training is thorough; it’s important that our people understand Providian as a whole—

not just our commitment to our customers, but our commitment to each other.”

“ I was treated with true compassion 
and caring.”
Karla Wood, Tampa, Florida

re: Melissa Zietz, Providian Employee, Oakland, CA
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Aria Card 

WebCard

GetSmart.com

Money Market Deposit Account

Lucia Sutton /      Representative, Customer Service Department

When Colin Denby first came to our attention, he needed some quick action on his account. Ever since,

he has been appreciative of our service because he knew we had gone out of our way to assist him. You

develop a personal relationship with customers, even though you don’t meet them face to face. It’s lovely

to personally take on a case, and to see an issue to its satisfactory conclusion. It is a most gratifying 

experience to be able to provide constructive information that helps customers. Even when you can’t 

provide every part of what they’re hoping you can do, there’s a mutual respect and a friendly attitude. It’s

worth all the work when you see customers go from being upset to thanking you for all the work you’ve

done on their behalf. I really enjoy that part of my job and feel that I have achieved something important.” 

“ I am overwhelmed with the service 
I received and the speed and courtesy 
with which my request was handled.”
Colin Denby, Chorley, England

re: Lucia Sutton, Providian Employee, Crawley, England
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Gwendolyn Adams /      Training Manager, Training and Communications

Our representatives frequently speak with customers like Renee LeMasney. She had been our customer

for seven years when she experienced an illness and found her life circumstances completely altered.

Fortunately, we have a lot of tools at our disposal to help customers work their way through these situa-

tions. We’re flexible—we have an array of products and methods to help customers—because there are

so many different situations. Providian is really strong on educating our customers, making sure they

understand what their obligations are and how our products work. From a training perspective, we’re just

as strong on educating our own people. While training is an ongoing process, we provide every individual

with extensive training when they join our team so they can be successful in their careers as customer

service representatives. With good training, they can serve customers more efficiently by having the skills

and the confidence to make decisions.” 

“Thank you, Providian!”
Renee LeMasney, Bensalem, Pennsylvania

re: Gwendolyn Adams, Providian Employee, Austin, TX
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Karina Rossi /      Operations Manager, Customer Service

Our department is the first contact that customers have with Providian. We want our customers to

understand that Providian has come to Argentina to give customers financial options and to enhance

their quality of life. People in Argentina are used to very limited customer service on the phone, just

account balances and credit limits, no more. That’s why Monica Kudrnac was so happy with Providian.

She was unaccustomed to getting this level of service over the phone. We’re introducing people to a

whole new way of banking that gives them more options. Customers keep commenting about our service

and how we’re willing to go the extra mile for them. We’re providing convenience banking in Argentina,

and people here are just not used to that. Personally, I love to see a customer come in, not knowing us,

and then educate them and have them see how well the relationship works.”

“ If you asked me to score Providian 
from one to 10, I’d give you a 12.”
Monica Kudrnac, Buenos Aires, Argentina

re: Karina Rossi, Providian Employee, Buenos Aires, Argentina
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Lisa Groves /      Director, GetSmart.com

When customers come to GetSmart.com, our bottom line is to make sure they find the product or service

they’re looking for. We want to be the site that gives people deals and choices. We’re constantly adding

new services, so if we don’t have it now, we try to provide enough information in the form of education or

content that will bring customers back in the future. E-mails like the one from Suzanne Kinney let us know

that the mortgage products on our site are meeting our customers’ needs. We’re making the process and

the presentation of GetSmart.com simple to follow and easy to navigate. We want to streamline the infor-

mation that the customer has to fill in. And we want customers to understand that GetSmart.com is trust-

worthy, that we respect our customers’ privacy, and that their personal information is secure. That’s how

we’re building long-term relationships.” 

“Within two hours of my application, I was
contacted by two lenders, and the next day 
I was contacted by a third!”
Suzanne Kinney, Leominster, Massachusetts

re: Lisa Groves, Providian Employee, San Francisco, CA
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Tom Story /      Director, Training and Communications

Because Providian customer service representatives have the authority to help our customers, they

feel really good about being able to help people like Isela Chokr. The Providian VISA Card helped her

attend a special program at the Option Institute to learn how to care for her grandson, who has serious

health issues. It’s moments like this that bring it all together. When you can reflect on the opportunity 

to help someone like Ms. Chokr, you feel good about coming in to work every day. Most companies are

fairly impersonal, but not Providian. Even though we’re a big company, we take a personal approach in

how we work with our customers. We use that personal touch to build relationships. My goal is to teach

our representatives to find solutions for our customers.”

“My experience at the Option Institute 
was invaluable, but watching my grandson 
develop as a result of it is priceless.”
Isela Chokr, Rancho Viejo, Texas

re: Tom Story, Providian Employee, Arlington, TX
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Robin Truluck /      Personal Banking Representative, Membership Products

Anytime you can offer customers a way to protect their credit, that’s a real benefit. It’s my job to help them

understand how maintaining good credit affects their entire lives. No one counts on bad things 

happening. The letter we received from Shirley Williams is a good example. She’s a nurse who was

injured while caring for a patient and wasn’t able to work. Nothing’s worse than losing your income. Ms.

Williams said we made her life a little easier at a bad time. Our Credit Protection product was valuable

for her. We want to be the company that our customers turn to when they have a financial need. And when

they call, we need to be understanding and able to respond. Our customers are the reason we’re here.” 

“Always being in perfect health, I couldn’t
think of anything going wrong.”
Shirley Williams, Fresno, California

re: Robin Truluck, Providian Employee, Louisville, KY
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Lilia Moreno /      Communications Manager, Training and Communications

Sometimes you’re having a tough day and then you see a customer letter that confirms you are really

adding value to someone’s life. Elaine Manning, one of our Gold Card customers, went through a difficult

time and Providian was really there for her when she needed us. My group prepares the communications

for our service centers, so representatives can speak knowledgeably with customers. One reason our

service is so good is that customers get the same information, no matter who they speak with. There are

a lot of people out there who have good things to say about us to their friends. And because our repre-

sentatives are empowered to help our customers, the quality of our service is always improving.”

“ I used my Providian Gold Card to 
conveniently buy gas, medicine, 
and even groceries.”
Elaine Manning, Garland, Texas

re: Lilia Moreno, Providian Employee, Fairfield, CA
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